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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of Paras Healthcare Limited (formerly known as Paras Healthcare Private
Limited)

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Opinion

1. We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Paras Healthcare Limited
(formerly known as Paras Healthcare Private Limited) (‘the Holding Company’) and its subsidiaries
Paras Healthcare (Ranchi) Private Limited and Plus Medicare Hospitals Private Limited (the Holding
Company and its subsidiaries together referred to as ‘the Group'), which comprise the Consolidated
Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2025, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other
Comprehensive Income), the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement and the Consolidated Statement of
Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including
material accounting policy information and other explanatory information.

2. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013
(‘the Act) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian
Accounting Standards (‘Ind AS') specified under section 133 of the Act, read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, and other accounting principles generally accepted in India of the
consolidated state of affairs of the Group as at 31 March 2025, and their consolidated loss (including
other comprehensive income), consolidated cash flows and the consolidated changes in equity for the
year ended on that date. ‘

Basis for Opinion

3. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10)
of the Act. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (‘ICAI') together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
consolidated financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the rules thereunder, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the members of Paras Healthcare Limited (formerly known as
Paras Healthcare Private Limited) on the consolidated financial statements (cont’d)

Information other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon

4. The Holding Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Annual Report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to
be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

5. The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been approved by the Holding Company's
Board of Directors. The Holding Company's Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated
in section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation and presentation of these consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated
financial performance including other comprehensive income, consolidated changes in equity and
consolidated cash flows of the Group in accordance with the Ind AS specified under section 133 of the
Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, and other accounting
principles generally accepted in India. The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in
the Group are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Group and for preventing and detecting frauds
and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements
by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

6. In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the companies
included in the Group are responsible for assessing the ability of the Group to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations,
or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

7. Those respective Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process
of the companies included in the Group.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

8. Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Standards on Auditing will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the members of Paras Healthcare Limited (formerly known as
Paras Healthcare Private Limited) on the consolidated financial statements (cont’d)

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control; -

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Holding Company has adequate internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of
such controls.;

¢ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management,

e Conclude on the appropriateness of Board of Directors’ use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group to continue
as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern;

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation; and

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group, to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of
financial statements of such entities included in the consolidated financial statements, of which we
are the independent auditors.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by section 197(16) of the Act, based on our audit, we report that the Holding Company
incorporated in India whose financial statements have been audited under the Act have paid
remuneration to their respective directors during the year in accordance with the provisions of and limits
laid down under section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act. Further, we report that two subsidiaries
incorporated in India whose financial statements have been audited under the Act have not paid or
provided for any managerial remuneration during the year. Accordingly, reporting under section 197(16)
of the Act is not applicable in respect of such subsidiaries.

As required by clause (xxi) of paragraph 3 of Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (‘the Order’)
issued by the Central Government of India in terms of section 143(11) of the Act based on the
consideration of the Order reports issued by us, of companies included in the consolidated financial
statements and covered under the Act we report that there are no qualifications or adverse remarks
reported in the respective Order reports of such companies.
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the members of Paras Healthcare Limited (formerly known as
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As required by section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

a)

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated
financial statements;

Except for the matters stated in paragraph 13(h)(vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended) in our opinion, proper books of account
as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid consolidated financial statements have
been kept so far as it appears from our examination of those books;

The consolidated financial statements dealt with by this report are in agreement with the relevant
books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial
statements;

In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with Ind AS specified under
section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015;

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company and
its subsidiaries and taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and its
subsidiaries respectively, covered under the Act, none of the directors of the Holding Company and
its subsidiaries, are disqualified as on 31 March 2025 from being appointed as a director in terms
of section 164(2) of the Act;

The qualification relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith
with respect to the consolidated financial statements are as stated in paragraph 13(b) above, on
reporting under section 143(3)(b) of the Act and paragraph 13(h)(vi) below on reporting under Rule
11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended);

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
of the Holding Company, and its subsidiaries covered under the Act, and the operating
effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in ‘Annexure A’ wherein we have
expressed an unmodified opinion; and

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), in our opinion and to the best
of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i, The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on the
consolidated financial position of the Group as detailed in note 32 to the consolidated financial
statements;

i.  The Holding Company, and its subsidiaries did not have any long-term contracts including
derivative contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses as at 31 March
2025,;

ii.  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Holding Company, and its subsidiaries covered under the Act, during
the year ended 31 March 2025;

iva. The respective managements of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries incorporated in
India whose financial statements have been audited under the Act have represented to us,
to the best of their knowledge and belief as disclosed in note 43(b) to the consolidated
financial statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from
borrowed funds or securities premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Holding
Company or its subsidiaries, to or in any persons or entities including foreign entities (‘the
intermediaries’), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities

Accountants
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identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Holding Company, or any such
subsidiaries, (‘the Ultimate Beneficiaries’) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on
behalf the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

b. The respective managements of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries, incorporated in
India whose financial statements have been audited under the Act have represented to us,
to the best of their knowledge and belief, as disclosed in the note 43(c) to the accompanying
consolidated financial statements, no funds have been received by the Holding Company or
its subsidiaries, from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (‘the Funding
Parties’), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Holding
Company, or any such subsidiaries, shall, whether directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party
(‘Ultimate Beneficiaries’) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

c. Based on such audit procedures performed by us, as considered reasonable and appropriate
in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
management representations under sub-clauses (a) and (b) above contain any material
misstatement.

V. The Holding Company and its subsidiaries have not declared or paid any dividend during the
year ended 31 March 2025.

vi.  As stated in note 45 to the consolidated financial statements and based on our examination
which included test checks, except for instances mentioned below, the Holding Company and
its subsidiaries which are companies incorporated in India and audited under the Act, in
respect of financial year commencing on 01 April 2024, have used accounting software for
maintaining their books of account which have a feature of recording audit trail (edit log)
facility and the same have been operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions
recorded in the software. Further, during the course of our audit we did not come across any
instance of audit trail feature being tampered with, other than the consequential impact of the
exceptions given below. Furthermore, other than the consequential impact of the exceptions
given below, the audit trail has been preserved by the Holding Company and its subsidiaries
as per the statutory requirements for record retention.

e The audit trail feature was not enabled at the database level for one accounting
software used for maintenance of revenue and inventory records by the Holding
Company and its two subsidiaries from 01 April 2024 to 12 May 2024.

e The audit trail feature was not enabled at the database level for another accounting
software, used for maintenance of laboratory records by the Holding Company, to log
any direct data changes.

e The Holding Company and its two subsidiaries have used accounting software for
maintenance of books of account which is operated by a third-party software service
provider. In the absence of any information on existence of audit trail (edit logs) for any
direct changes made at the database level in the ‘Independent Service Auditor's
Assurance Report on the Description of Controls, their Design and Operating
Effectiveness’ (‘Type 2 report’ issued in accordance with ISAE 3402, Assurance
Reports on Controls at a Service Organization), we are unable o comment on whether
audit trail feature with respect to the database of the said software was enabled and
operated throughout the year.

Chartered Accountants
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e The Holding Company and its two subsidiaries have used accounting software for
maintenance of payroll records which is operated by a third-party software service
provider. In the absence of any information on existence of audit trail (edit logs) for any
direct changes made at the database level in the ‘Independent Service Auditor's
Assurance Report on the Description of Controls, their Design and Operating
Effectiveness’ (‘Type 2 report’ issued in accordance with ISAE 3000 (Revised),
Assurance Engagements Other than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information), we are unable to comment on whether audit trail feature with respect to
the database of the said software was enabled and operated throughout the year.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.: 001076N/N500013

— (o

Tarun Gupta
Partner
Membership No.: 507892

UDIN: 25507892BMNSMJ1149

Place: Gurugram
Date: 30 May 2025
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of Paras
Healthcare Limited (formerly known as Paras Healthcare Private Limited) on the consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

Independent Auditor’s Report on the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the
Act’)

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of Paras Healthcare Limited
(formerly known as Paras Healthcare Private Limited) (‘the Holding Company') and its subsidiaries
(the Holding Company and its subsidiaries together referred to as ‘the Group’), as at and for the year
ended 31 March 2025, we have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Holding Company, its subsidiary companies, which are companies covered under
the Act, as at that date.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for Internal Financial
Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries, which are companies
covered under the Act, are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria established by
the Holding Company and its subsidiaries considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India . These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries
business, including adherence to the Holding Company and its subsidiaries policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information,
as required under the Act.

Auditor’'s Responsibility for the Audit of the Internal Financial Controls with Reference to
Financial Statements

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies as aforesaid, based on our audit.
We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India ('ICAI’) prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, and the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (‘the Guidance Note’)
issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit
of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements includes obtaining an
understanding of such internal financial controls, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists,
and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of the
Holding Company and its subsidiary companies as aforesaid.
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the members of (Paras
Healthcare Limited (formerly known as Paras Healthcare Private Limited) on the consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025 (cont’d)

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

A Group's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A group's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements include those
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the group; (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the group are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management
and directors of the group; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely
detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the group's assets that could have a
material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods
are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion , the Holding Company and its subsidiaries, which are companies covered under the
Act, have in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements and such controls were operating effectively as at 31 March 2025, based on the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria established by the Holding Company
and respective subsidiaries considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note issued by the ICAI

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.: 001076N/N500013

~ o

Tarun Gupta
Partner
Membership No.: 507892

UDIN: 25507892BMNSMJ1149

Place:Gurugram
Date: 30 May 2025



Paras Healtheure Limited (formerly known as Faras Healtheare Private Limited)
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Consolidated Balance sheet as at 31 March 2015

(Al amounts are In TNRE million, unless otherwise stated)

f . As ol As at
Parlicalars Noles 31 March 2025 1 March 2024
ARSETS '
MNan-corrent asscis
Property, plant and equipment 4 6,456.04 5,886,735
Righi-ol-use assets ] 5,213,909 3.915.65
Cupital work-in-progress i a2 28776
Croodwill 7 46,44 4644
Cither intangible assels TA 17.62 2836
Financial assets

Other linancial assets 4 32371 371.31
Mon-current twx asseds (nel) 9 KIS 346,20
Cither nan-current wssels v 101.97 L57.R5
Tolal non-current assets 1292730 11.040,30
Current assels
Inventorics 11 202 BT 278.00
Fimancial asscts

Trade receivables 12 234591 1,563.11

Cash ursd cash equivalents 13 3724 154.54

Bank balunces uther than cash and cash equivalents 14 1.085.008 144824

Crther financial assets R 45562 24984
Oither eurrent assots in A 4247
Total current nssets 5,177.21 3,730,248
Tatal asscts 14, 104.51 14,776.58
EOUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
FEquity sharc capital 15 a7.61 Q761
Chher equity 16 2.707.31 3284
Totul eyuity 2,504,92 3,345.08
Liahilitics
MWon-current liahilitics
TFimancial liahilitics

Lormowings 17 4 364,41 358399

Lease labililies 5 4 61859 3,503.27

(Mher finuncial labililies 18 5.58 325
Trovisions k] 7344 Tras
Deferred tax liahilitics a0 43.25 1875
Tutal nun- current liahilities 910552 TABLG2
Current liabilities
Financial liahilitics

Lorrowings 174 291490 1,891.34

Lease labilities 5 42328 260060

Trade pavables 20

- Totel owtstunding dues of micre emerprises and small enterprises; und 47217 29608
- Todal otstandinge dues of credilors other han micro enterprises and small enterprises 1,433.21 LIE.75

Oither Minancial liahilitics 18 T52.06 472,92
(Mher current liabilities 21 161,84 174.05
Provisions 19 I6.El 3616
Total curvent liabilitics 5,194.27 4,200.88
Total cquity nod liabilities 18,104.51 14, 776,58
Summary of material aecounting policy information 3

The accompanying noles are an imfegral part of these consolidated financial statements
Ag per our report of even duate atlached.
For Walker Chandiok & Co T.I.P

Chartered Avcouninnis Faras 11
Firm Registration Mo: (0L07ERMS00013

W
Tarun Gupia

Tartncr
Membership Mo, S07842

Dilip Lidaini
Ciroup CFO

Place: Gurugram Place; Gurizgram
Drate: 30 My 2025 Date; 30 May 2025

Managing Thirector
DI - Q0332135

D.Bdow

erly known as Paras Healihenre Private Linited)

= ] o
A ¥ Ir_/‘:_,-\\
|

Iir, Kapil Garg

Whele time Director

L : 014754972

Company Secrelary
Membership Mo, AZ0928



Parus Ilealthenre Limived (formerly known as Paras Healtheare Private Limiled)
CIN ;- USS1I0HR 1987 PICO35H23

Consolidated Statement of Profit and Lass fer the year ended 31 March 2025
(Al amonmts are in INK million, unless otherwise stated)

Far the ycar-cmlcl;l

For the vear ended

Particula Motes
syt g = 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Income
Revenuc from operations 22 12,9400.63 11,290,309
(Jther menme 23 20144 219.84
Taotal income 13,142.07 11,5101L.23
Expenses
Purchuses of stuck-in-irade 24 336029 304895
Chunges in invenlories of stock-in-trade 25 T.12 (R1.83)
Eeployes benelits expense & 1,738,046 1,672, 58
Finance costs 7 S8R 07064
Drepreciation and amortization sxpenss 13 1,135,778 077
Retainers and consultants foe 3,589.47 2,930 84
Fair valuc changes to financiul inslruments - (133.34)
(¥ther expenscs 29 - 2881.52 2,52042
Total expenses 13,642.42 11,443.93
(Loss) profit before tax {3000.36) 6630
Tax cxpense 30
Current Lux 5493 201 83
Dreferred tax charge (net) 24.54 17,748
I.nss for the year (A) (579.583) (153.31)
Other comprehensive income
Ttems that will not he reclassified to profit or loss and their related inceme tax effects
Remeasurements of defined benelil plans (L38) (491}
Less: Income tax relaling o sbove o (.05 1.15
(ther comprehensive (loss)’ income For the vear, net of tax (H) (1h.33) (3.76)
Total comprehensive (lnss) income for the year (A+13) [F8IL16) (137.07)
Earnings per cqguity share 3l
Basic and diluted (im INK per share) (5.94) (L.5T)
Summary of material accounting policy mtormation 3

The sceompanying nodes ure an infepral past of these consolidated financial statements
As per our report of cven date attached.

For Walker (handiok & Co LLP
Charfered Accouwnlanis
Firm Reegistration Ma; (010TANMS00013

Tarun Gupts 2 f :
Partner | = 5
Membership No. 507892 r-.\ S

DIM : 00332135

FLA_M:J'
Dilip Hidani
Ciroup C10

Place: Ciurugram
Diate: 30 May 2025

Plave: Gurugram
Drates 20 May 2025

For and on behell of Beacd of Directors of

Dy, Kapil Garg
Whaole tire Dircctor
[3MN - (11475972

Company Secretary
Membership Mo, A20928



Paras Healthcare Limited (formerly known as Paras Healthcare Private Limited)

CIN :- U85110HR1987PLC035823

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow for the year ended 31 March 2025

(A1l amounts are in INR million, unless otherwise stated)

. For the year ended For the year ended
Saraians Notes 31 March 2025 31 Mareh 2024
A. Cash flow from operating activities

(Loss)/ profit before tax (500.36) 66.30
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortization expense 28 1,155.78 807.17
Foreign exchange fluctuation (gain)/ loss (net) 23 (1.15) 1.87
Loss/ (gain) on sale of property, plant and equipment (net) 29&23 0.34 (2.71)
Finance costs 27 909.18 670.64
Gain on termination of lease 23 - 4.72)
Liabilities no longer required written back 23 (2.51) (6.60)
Interest income 23 (159.31) (141.60)
Fair value changes to financial instruments - (133.84)
Loss allowance 29 203.96 104.62
1,605.93 1,361.13
Adjustments for changes in working capital:
-in trade receivables (986.75) (361.05)
-in other assets (183.25) (54.97)
-in inventories 15.14 (100.85)
-in trade payables 530.97 135.63
-in other liabilities and provisions (22.01) 50.01
Cash generated from operations 960.03 1,029.90
Income taxes paid (net) (98.13) (105.13)
Net cash generated from operating activities (A) 861.90 924.77
B. Cash flows from investing activities
Payments for purchase of property, plant and equipment and intangible (1,366.64) (1,975.54)
assets (including capital work in progress, capital advances and payable 4,6,10 & 18
for purchase of property, plant and equipment)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 4 12.83 28.49
Investments in bank deposits (net) (234.61) (76.43)
Interest received 115.91 82.93
Net cash used in investing activities (B) (1,472.51) (1,940.55)
C. Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds of non-current borrowings 17 1,440.76 1,429.84
Repayment of non-current borrowings 17 (420.79) (320.25)
Movement in current borrowings (net) 17A 791.71 415.99
Principal elements of lease payments (4.21) (3.44)
Payment of interest on lease liabilities (402.44) (211.74)
Finance costs paid (576.86) (370.62)
Net cash generated from financing activities (C) 828.17 939.78
Net increase/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 217.56 (76.00)
D. Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Balance with banks:
- On current accounts 3 141.26 222.10
- with original maturity of three months or less 1.35 1.30
Cash on hand 11.97 7.18
154.58 230.58
E. Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year
Balance with banks:
- On current accounts 13 359.15 141.26
- with original maturity of three months or less 13 1.41 1.35
Cash on hand 13 11.58 11.97
372.14 154.58
Net increase/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (E-D) 217.56 (76.00)




Paras Healthcare Limited (formerly known as Paras Healthcare Private Limited)
CIN :- U85110HR1987PLC035823

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow for the year ended 31 March 2025

(A1l amounts are in INR million, unless otherwise stated)

Notes:

1 The cash flow statement has been prepared under the indirect method set out in Indian Accounting Standard 7 on Statement of cash flows as notified under section

133 of the Companies Act, 2013.
2 Change in liabilities arising from financing activities:

Notes For the year ended

Particulars

31 March 2025

For the year ended
31 March 2024

Opening balance

Non current borrowings (including current maturities) 17 3,991.53 2,879.01
Current borrowings 17A 1,483.80 1,067.81
Lease liabilties 5 3,763.87 3,609.57
Interest accrued 9.37 4.00
Cash flows
Proceeds from non-current borrowings 17 1,440.76 1,429.84
Repayment of non-current borrowings 17 (420.79) (320.25)
Proceeds of current borrowings (net) 17A 791.71 415.99
Principal elements of lease payments 4.21) (3.44)
Payment of interest on lease liabilities (402.44) (211.74)
Finance costs paid (576.86) (370.62)
Non-cash adjustments
Interest expenses towards lease liabilities 27 333.32 291.70
Lease additions and modifications 5 1,351.33 5.34
Interest on lease capitalised - 72.45
Finance costs debited to consolidated statement of profit and loss 575.86 378.95
Effective interest rate adjustment to borrowings (7.71) 2.94
Effective interest rate adjustment to consolidated statement of profit and loss 7.71 (2.94)
Closing balance
Non-current borrowings (including current maturities) 17 5,003.80 3,991.53
Current borrowings 17A 2,275.51 1,483.80
Lease liabilities 5 5,041.88 3,763.87
Interest accrued 16.09 9.37

Summary of material accounting policy information 3

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements

As per our report of even date attached.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP For and on behalf of Board of Directors of

Chartered Accountants Paras Healthcare Limited (formerly known as Paras Healthcare Private Limited)

Firm Registration No: 001076N/N500013
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Tarun Gupta Dr. Dharminder Kumar Nagar

Partner Managing Director
Membership No. 507892 DIN : 00332135
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Date: 30 May 2025 Date: 30 May 2025
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Whole time Director
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Rahil Kumar
Company Secretary
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Paras Healtheare Limited (Tormerly known as Paras Healitheare Private Limited)
CIN = UBST10HRT198TPLCO35523
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Fouity for the year ended 31 March 2025
(AN amounts are in INIE million, unless otherwise stated)

Al

Exuity share capital

As at 31 March 2025

As at 31 March 2024

Partiaulass Mumber of shares Amount  Number of shares Amount
At the beginning ol the year 97,610,060 9761 3,675,964 1576
Add: Reclassification from lnancial liabilicy* - - 1,204, 56% 12.04
Add : Sharcs split during the vear - - 43,924 797 -
Add : Bonus shares issued during the year - - 48.805.330 A8.81
Al the end of the year DT7610,660 97.01 27610660 9761
Other equity
Attributable to the equily shareholders
) Keserves and surplus i

Eariiculpry Securities premium _ Refained carnings Kelal
Balance as ai 01 April 2023 62,71 201.5% 204,30
Lass Tor the vear - (153.31) (15331}
Reclassitication from other Gnancial liabilin* - 60,46 64046
Other comprehensive income lor the year

Re-measurement gain on defined benefit plans (net of tax) - (3.70) (3.76)
Transaction with owners in their capacity as owners

Reclassification from other financial liability™® 2.588.59 - 2.588.59

[Teilised wwards allotment of bomus shares (A8.81) - [EERAN]
Balance as at 31 March 2024 2.602.49 RERL 328747
Loss for the year - (5T9.83) (379.83)
Other comprehensive income for the year

Re-measurement loss on defined henelit plans (net of tax) - (0.33) (0.33)
Dalance as at 31 March 2025 260249 104.52 2,707.31

*|Yuring the year ended 31 March 2024, an addendum to the Investment and Share Purchase Agrecment was mude effective [rom 28 March 2024 The
Tnvestor has unconditionally wnd irrevocably waived the Buy Back Option and undertakes that it shall not issue any Buy-Hack notice m furlherance
thereof. Conseguently, there are no longer any contraciual obligations and the financial instruments have lreen reclassified as Tyuily and Other Equity.

Summary ol material accounting policy information

The accompanying noles are an integral part of these consolidated linancial statcments

A per owr report of even dale allached.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Kegistration No: 0010TGNMN 00013
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Paras Healthcare Limited (formerly known as ‘Paras Healtheare Private Limited®)
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
CIN; - USS110HRI987TPL.CO35823

1. Corporale Information

Paras Healtheare Limited (formerly known as ‘Paras Healthcare Private Limiled”) (‘the Company” or “the Holding Company”) isa
Group domiciled in India, with its registered office siluated at Lst Floor, Tower-B, Paras Twin Towers, Golf Course Road, Sector-
54, Gurugram-122002, Haryuna. The Group has been incorporated under the provisions of Indian Companies Act on 21 December
1987, These consolidated financial statements comprise of the [Tolding Company and its two subsidiaries (referred Lo collectively
as the *Group’). 'The Group is primarily engaged in the business of providing healthcare services.

During the year 31 March 2025, Paras Healthcare Limited (*PHL") (formerly known as ‘Paras Healtheare Private Timited') has
been converted rom private company o public company vide *Certificate of Incorporation consequent upon conversion from private
company to public company’ dated 18 July 2024 as issucd by the Ministry ol Corporate Affairs (\MCA™).

2. Basis of preparation of consolidated financial statements

(iy Statement of compliance

These consolidated lnancial statements (* financial statements™) have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Stan dards
(Ind AS) as per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 notified under Section 133 of Companies Act, 2013, (the
Act') and other relevant provisions of the Act.

The consolidated financial statements were authorised for issue by the Group®s Board ol Directors on 30 Muy 2025,

Delails of the Group’s wccounting policies are included in Mote 3.

{ii) Functional and presentation currency

These consolidated financial statements are prepared in [INR millions, which is the Group’s lunctional and presenlation currency.
All amounts have been rounded-off to the nearest millions and two decimals thereof except share data and per share data, unless
otherwise stated.

(iii) Basis ol measurement

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for the following ilems:

ltems | Measurement basis
Net defined henclit {asset)! liability Present value of delined benefit obligations
(Oither financial assets and liabilities Amortised cosl i

{iv) Recent accounting pronouncement

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (*MCA™) notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards under Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules as amended from time to time. During the year ended 31 Mlarch 2025, MCA has notilied following
new standards or amendments Lo the existing standards applicable to the Company:

. Recent accounting pronouncement issued bul not made effective

Lack of exchangeability - Amendments to Ind AS 21: The amendinents to Ind AS 21 *The Lffects of Changes in Foreign
Exchange Rates” specify how an entity should assess whether a curreney is exchangeable and how it should determine a spot
exchange rate when exchangeability is lacking. The amendmenls also require disclosure of information that cnables nsers of its
financial statements to understand how the currency not being exchangeable into the other currency affects, or is expected to
affect, the entity's finuncial performance, financial position and cash flows.

The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 01 April 2025, When applying the
amendments, an entity cannol restate comparalive information,

The amendments will nol have a material impact on the Group’s linancial statements.




Paras Healtheare Limited (formerly known as “Paras Iealthcare Private Limited’)
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
CTIN: - URST10HR1987PLCO35823

b. Amended Accounting Standards (Ind AS) and interpretations elTeetive during the period

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (*“MCA™) notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under Companies
{Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time o time. MCA has notified below new standards / amendments which
were effective from 01 April, 2024,

1) Introduction of Ind AS 117 - Insurance contracts

MCA notified Ind AS 117, a comprehensive standard that prescribe, recognition, measurement and disclosure requirements, to
avoid diversities in practice for accounting insurance contracts and it applies to all companies i.e., to all "insurance contracts”
regardless of the issuer. ITowever, Ind AS 117 is not applicable to the entities which are insurance companies registered with
IRTIAL

IT) Amendments to Ind AS 116 -Lease liability in a sale and leaseback
The amendments require an entity to recognise lease liability including variable lease payments which are not linked to index
or a rate in a way it does not result into gain on right-of-use asset it retains.

The Group has reviewed the new pronouncements and based on its evaluation has delermined that these amendments do not have a
significant impact on the Group's financial statements.

(v) Usc of estimates and judgements

The preparation of these financial statements in conflormity with recognition and measurement principles of Ind AS reguires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reporied
amounts of assets, liahilitics, income and expenses as well as disclosures. Actual results may dilTer from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumplions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting cstimates are recognised in the
period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods prospectively.

In particular, information ahout significant areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical judgements in applying accounting policies
thal have the most significant elfects on the amount recognised in the Consolidated Financial Statements pertains to

a) Useful lives and recoverahle amount of property, plant and equipment and intangible asset

The estimated useful lives and recoverable amounts of properly, plant and equipment and inlangible assets are based on
estimates and assumptions regarding the expected markel outlook, expected future cash flows, growth rates, obsolescence,
demand, competition, and known technological advances. The charge in respect of periodic depreciation/ amortisation is
derived based on an estimate of an assel’s expected useful life and the expected residual value at the end of its life. The Group
reviews the useful lives and recoverable amounts of properly, plant and equipment and intangible assets at the end of each
reporling period.

byImpairment of {inancial asset

The Group assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit loss associated with its financial assets and the impairment
methodology depends on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

Trade receivables

In respect of trade receivables, the Group applies the simplified approach of Ind AS 109 (‘Provision matrix approach’), which
requires measurement of loss allowance at an amount equal to litetime expected credit losses, Tifetime expected credit losses
are the expeeted credit losses that result from all possible default evenls over the expected life of a financial instrument.

Other financial asvels

In respect of ils other financial assets, the Group assesses if the credit risk on those financial assets has increased significantly
since initial recognition. If the credit risk has not increased significantly since initial recognition, the Group measures the loss
allowance al an amount equal to |2-month expected credit losses, else al an amount equal to the lifetime expeeted credit losses.

When muking this assessment, the Group uses the change in the risk ol a default oceurring over the expeeted life of the financial
asset. To make that assessment, the Group compares the risk of a defaull oceurring on the financigfagsplasal the balance sheet




Paras Healthcare Limited (formerly known as “Paras Tlealtheare Private Limited”)
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
CTN: - USS110HIRRI98TPLC0O35823

dale with the risk of a default oceurring on the financial assel as at the date of initial recognition and considers reasonable and
supportable information, that is available without undue cost or elTort, that is indicative of significant increases in credit risk
since initial recognition. The Group assumes that the credil risk on a linancial asset has not increased significantly since initial
recognition if the financial asset is determined to have low credil risk at the balance sheet date.

chlneome Lax

Recognition of deferred tax assets/ liabilities involves making judgements and estimations about the availability of future
taxable profit against which tax losses carried forward can be used. A deferred tax asset is recognised for unused tax losses and
deductible temporary differences, to the cxtent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they
can be ulilised.

Deferred Lax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related
tax benefit will be realized.

Provision for tax liabilities require judgements on the interpretation of tax legislation, developments in case laws and the
potential outcomes of appeals which may be subject to significant uncertainty. Therefore, the actual results may vary from
expectations resulling in adjustments to provisions, the valuation of deferred lax assets and therefore the tax charge in the
Conselidated Stalerment of Profit and Loss.

d) Litigations

From time to time, the Group is subject to legal proceedings the ultimate outcome of cach being always subject to many
uncertainties inherent in litigation. A provision for liligation is made when it is considered probable that a payment will he
made and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated. Significant judgement is made when evaluating, among other
factors, the probability of unfavourable outcome and the abilily to make a reasonable estimale ol the amount of potential loss.
Litigation provisions are revicwed at each accounting period and revisions made for the changes in facts and circumstances.

e) Employee benefit obligations

Employee benefit obligations arc determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making appropriate
assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the [uture. These include the determination ol the discount rate, future
sulary increases and mortality rales. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-lenn nature, a defined benefit
obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumplions. All assumptions are reviewed al cach reporting date.

) Leases
Critical judgements in determining Lhe lease term:

Tnd A% 116 requires lessees to delermine the lease term as the non-cancellable period of a lease adjusted with any option to
extend or lerminate the lease, it the use of such option is reasonably certain. The Group makes an assessment on the expected
lease term on a lease-by-lease basis and there by assesses whether it is reasonably certain that any options Lo exlend or terminate
the contract will be exercised. Tn evaluating the lease term, the Group considers factors such as any significant leasehold
improvements undertaken over the lease term, costs relating to the termination of the lease and the importance ol the underlying
asset Lo (Group's operations taking into account the location of the underlying asset and the availability ol suilable alternatives.
The leasc terin in future periods is reassessed to ensure that the lease lerm reflects the current economic circumstances.

Critical judpgements in determining the discount rate:

The discount rate is generally based on the incremental borrowing rate specific to the lease being evaluated or lor a portfolio of
leases with similar characteristics.

{vi) Measurement of [air values
A number of the Group's accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values, for both lnancial and

non-financial assets and liabilities, The Group has an established control [ramework with respect to the measurement of fair
values. The Group’s CFO regularly reviews significant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments.
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Fair values are categorised into different levels in a [air value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques as
follows:

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2: inputs other Lthan quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the assel or liability, either directly (i.c. as
prices) or indirectly (i.c. derived from prices).

Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs)

When measuring the fair value of an asset ar a liability, the Group uses observable market data s [ar as possible. It the mputs
wsed to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into difTerent levels of the fair value hicrarchy, then the fair value
measurement is categorised in ils entirety in the same level of the [air value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant

tor the entive measurement,

The Group recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hicrarchy at the end of the reporting period during which the
change has ocourred.

Further inlormation about the assumplions made in measuring fair values is included in the consolidated financial statements.
(vii) Current versus non-eurrent classification

The Group presents assets and liabilities in the Balance Sheet based on current/ non-current classification.

An asset is classilicd as current when it satisfics any of the following critena:

a) Lxpected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle,

b)Ileld primarily [or the purpose of trading,

¢) Expected to be realised within twelve months aller the reporting period, or

d}Cash or cash cquivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after

the reporting period.

All other assets are classilicd as non-current,

A liability is classificd as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

a) It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle,

bl is held primarily for the purpose of trading,

) It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

d)There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

All other liabilities are classilicd as non-current,

Al assets and lighilities have been classified as current or non- current as per the Group’s operating cycle and other criteria set

out in Schedule ITT to the Companies Act, 2013, Based on the nature of products/ services and the lime between the acquisition

of assets for processing and their realization in cash and cash cquivalents, the Group has ascertained ils operating cycle to be

within 12 months for the purpose of current and non- current classification of assets and liahilitics.

Deferred tax assets and liabilitics are classified as non-current assets and liabilities respectively.

I} Material accounting policy information
A. Principles of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Ind AS 110 on “Consolidated linancial statements”,
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Details of the consolidated subsidiaries and shareholding pattern arc as lollows:-

Name ol subsidiary Counlry Percentage of ownership
B of incorporation _
l Paras Healthcare (Ranchi) Private Limited ‘ India 100% |
| Plus Medicare Hospitals Private Timited | India | 100%

i.Subsidiary

Subsidiary is entity controlled by the Group. The Group contrals an entity when it is exposed to, or has rights Lo, variable returms
from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity. The financial
statements of subsidiary are included in the consolidated financial statements from the date on which control commences until
the date on which conlrol ceases.

ii. Transactions eliminated on consolidation

Combine like items of asscts, liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows of the parent with those ol ils subsidiaries.
For this purpose, income and expenses of the subsidiary are based on the amounts of the assets and liabilities recognised in the
consolidated financial statements at the acquisition dale.

Offset (climinate) the carrying amount of the parent’s investment in the subsidiary and the parent’s portion of equily of the
subsidiary.

Eliminate in full, infragroup asscts and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash Mows relating to transactions belween
entities of the Group (profits or lusses resulting from intragroup transactions that are recognised in assets, such as inventory
and properly, plant and equipment, are eliminated in [ull). Intragroup losses may indicate an impairment that requires
recognition in the consolidated finuncial statements. Ind AS 12 “Income Taxes” applies to temporary differences that arise Irom
the elimination of profits and losses resulting from inlragroup transactions.

B. Property, plani and equipment
(i} Recopnition and measurement

[tems of properly, plant and equipment are measured at cost, which includes capitalised borrowing costs, less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any, Cost ol'an item of property, plant and cquipment comprises its purchase
price, including import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, afler deducting trade discounts and rebates, any directly
attributable cost of bringing the item Lo its working condition [or ils intended use and estimated cost of dismantling and
removing the item and restoring the sile on which it is located ilany.

‘The cost of a sell-constructed item of property, plant and equipment comprises the cost of materials and direct labour, any other
costs directly atlributable to bringing the item to working condition for its intended use, and estimaled costs of dismantling and
removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located.

I significant parts ol an item of property, plant and equipment have dilTerent useful lives, then they arc accounted for as separate
items (major components) of properly, plant and equipment. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in the
statement of profit and loss as incurred. :

(Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of a property, plant and equipment are delermined as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and Lhe carrying amount of the assel and recognised as income or expense in the statement
of profit and loss.

(i) Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with the expenditure
will flow to the Group.
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(iif) Depreciation

Depreciation is calculated on cost of ilems of property, plant and equipment less their estimated residual values over their useful
lives mentioned below, using the writien down value except for leaschold improvements and is recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit and loss.

Asset class Useful life |
Buildings 05/30/60 years
Plant and equipments 15 years
| Medical equipments 13 years |
| Office equipments {15 vears |
Computer and servers 03/06 years |
Furniture and fillings 10 yeurs
Vehicles 08 years |

Frechold land is not depreciated.

The leaschold improvements are depreciated using straight line method over the primary period of the lease or uselul life of the
assets (generally 10 years), whichever is lower.

Depreciation on additions (disposals) is provided on a pro-rata basis i.c. from (upto) the date on which asset is ready for use
(disposed of).

Capital work-in-progress
The cost of property, plant and equipment not ready for their intended use is recorded as capital work-in-progress before such
date. Cost of construction that relate directly Lo specific property, plant and equipment and that are attributable to construction

activity in general and can be allocated to specilic property, plant and equipment are included in capital work-in-progress,

Lxpenses against the assets are nol ready for their intended use and ather capital work-in-progress are carried at cost, comprising
direct cost, related incidental expenses,

Intangible asscts

Intangible assets are stated at acquisition cost, net of aceumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. The
cost of such assets includes purchase price, licensee (e, import duties and other taxes and any directly attributable expenditure
to bring the assets to their working condition for intended use.

Amuoriization method, estimated useful life and residual value

Intangible assets arc amortised @ 40% p.a, on written down value of the assels. The amortisation period, residual value and the
amortisation method are reviewed at least at cach balance sheet date. If the expected useful life of the asset is significantly
different [rom previous estimates, the amortisation period is changed accordingly.

Gains or Josses arising from the retirement or disposal of an intangible asset are determined as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the assel and recopnised as income or expense in the consolidated statement of
profit and loss.

Inventories

Tnventories of medical drugs, stores and consumahles are measured at the lower of cost and net Tealisable valne. The cost of
inventories includes expenditure incwred in acquiring the inventories and other costs in bringing them to their present condition
and location. The cost of the items constituting the inventory is computed on First In First Out (FIFO) biasis.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated selling cxpenses.

The comparison of cost and nit realisable value is made on an item-by-item basis.
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G.

Provisionsiwrile-downs for obsolescence, damaged and slow-moving inventory are made, wherever necessary and inventory is
stated net of such provisionswrite-downs.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand, demand deposits with banks, other shorl-term highly liquid investments with
original maturities of three months or less that are readily converlible to known amounts of cash and which arc subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value,

Leases

A lease is defined as *a contract, or part ol a contract, that conveys the right to use an asset (Lhe underlying asset) [or a period
of time in exchange for consideration’,

Classilication of leases

The Group enters into leasing arrangements for various assets. The asscssment of the lease is bascd on several factors, including,
but not limited to, transfer of ownership of leased asset at end of lease Llerm, lessee’s option to extend/purchase etc.

Recognition and initial measuremcnt

At lease commencement date, the Group recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability on the balance sheet. The right-ol-
use assel is measured at cost, which is made up of the initial measurement of Lhe lease liability, any initial direct costs incurred
by the Group, an estimate of any costs to dismantle and remove the asset at the end of the lease {if any), and any lease payments
made in advance of the lease commencement date (net of any incentives received).

Subsequent measurcment

The Group depreciates the right-ol-use assets on a straight-line basis from the lease commencement dule to the earlier of the
end of the usclul life of the right-of-use asset or the end of the lease term. The Group also assesses the righl-of-use asset for
impairment when such indicators exisl.

At lease commencement date, the Group measures the lease liability at the present value of the lease paymenls unpaid at that
date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease if that rate is readily available or the Group’s incremental borrowing
rate. Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability are made up of fixed payments {including in substance
fixed payments) and variable payments based on an index or rate. Subsequent Lo initial measurement, the liability will he
reduced for payments made and increased for interest, It 15 re-measured to retlect any reassessment or moditication, or if there
are changes in in-substance fixed payments. When the lease liability is re-measured, the corresponding adjustment is reflectad
in the right-of-usc assel.

The Group has elecled o account for short-lerm leases and leases of low-value assets using the practical expedicnts. Instead of
recognising a right-of-use asset and lease liability, the payments in relation to these are recognised as an expensc in Slatement
ol Profit and Loss on a straight-ling basis over the lease term,

Financial instruments

(i) Reccognition and inilial measurement

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a finuncial liability or equily instrument
of another entity. A financial asset or financial liability is initially measured at fair valuc plus, for an item not at [air value

through profit and loss (FVTPL), transaction costs that are direetly attributable to its acquisition or issue.

Trade receivables and debl securities are initially recognised when they are originated. All other financial assets and linancial
liahilities are initially recognised when the Group becomes a parly Lo the contractual provisions of the instrument.
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(i) Classification and subsequent measurement
Financial ussets

On Initial recognition, a (inancial asset is classificd as measured at:

Avnortised cost

FWw (T — debt investment;
FWOUCT — equity imvestment, or
= FVIT'PL

Financial assets are not reclassificd subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the period the Group changes ils
husiness model for managing financial assets,

A financial asset is measured at the amortised cost if both of the following conditions are met and is nol designated as at FVTTL:
v the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is 1o hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and

s the contractual terms of the financial asscl give rise on specified dates lo cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest (SPP1) on the principal amount oulstanding,

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Group may irrevocably elect Lo present subsequent
changes in the investment's fair value in OCI (designated as FVOCI  cquity investment). This gleetion iz made on an
investment- by- invesliment basis.

All financial assets not classified as measured al amortised cost or FVOCT as deseribed above are measured al FVTPL. This
includes all derivative linancial assets. On inilial recognition, the Group may irrevocably designate a linancial asset that
otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at amortised cost or at FYOCI as at FVTPL if doing so climinates or
significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.

Financiol assers; Business model assessment

The Group makes an assessment of the ohjective of the business model in which a financial asset is held al a portfolio level
because this best reflects the way the business is managed, and information is provided to management. The information
considered includes;

a) the stated policies and objectives for the portfolio and the operation of those policies in practice. These include whether
management’s strategy focuses on carning contractual inlercst income, maintaining a parlicular interest rate profile, malching
the duration of the financial assets to the duration of any related liabilities or expected cash outflows or realising cash [ows
through the sale of the assels;

b) how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated und reported to the Group’s management;

¢) the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assels held within that business madel) and
how those risks are managed;

d) how managers of the business are compensated  e.g. whether compensation is based on the fair value of the assets managed
or the contractual cash flows collecled; and

e) the frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial assets in prior periods, the reasons for such sales and expueclalions
aboul (uture sales activity.

Transfers of financial assets to third parties in transactions thal do not qualify for derecognition are not considered sales for this
purpose, consistent with the Group’s continuing recognition of the assets.

Financial assets that are held lor trading or are managed and whose performance is evaluated on a fair value basis are measured
at FVTPL.
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Financial assers; Assesyment whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest:

I'or the purposes of this assessment, ‘principal’ is defined as the fair value of the financial assel on initial recognition. *Interest”
is defined as consideration for the time value of money and for the credit risk associated with the principal amount outstanding
during a particular period of time and for other basic lending risks and costs (e.g. liquidity risk and administrative cosls), as
well as a profit margin,

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, Lhe Group considers the contraclual
terms of the instrument, This includes assessing whether Lthe linancial asset contains a contraclual tenn that could change the
timing or amount of contractual cash flows such that it would not meet this condition. In making this assessment, the Group
considers:

a) contingent events that would change the amount or liming of cash flows;

h) terms that may adjust the conlractual coupon rate, including variable interest rate features;

¢} prepayment and extension lcalure; and

d)  terms that limit the Group's claim Lo cash flows from specilicd assets (e.g. non- recourse features)
Financial asseis: Subsequent measuremeni and guins and losses

Finaneial assels af FVTPL

These assets arc subsequently measured at [air value. Net gains and losses, including any interest or dividend income, are
recognised in statement of profit and loss.

Financial assets af amoriized cost

These assets arc subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective intcerest method. The amortised cost is reduced by
impairment losses. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and losses and impainment are recognised in statement ol profit and
loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is recognised in statement of profit and loss.

Dyebr fmvestmenes at KOS

I'hese assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest income under the clfective interest method, foreign exchange
gains and losses and impairment are recognised in statement of profit and loss. Other net gains and losses are recognised in
(L. On derecognition, gains and losses accumulated in OCI are reclassified to stalement of profit and loss.

Eguity investments at FVOC!

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are recognised as income in statement of profit and loss unless
the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost of the investment. Other net gains and losses are recognised in OCI
and are not reclassified o statement of profit and loss.

Financial liabilities: Classification, subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial liabilities are classilied as measured at amorlised cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is classified as at FVTPL il it
is classified as held-for-trading, or it is a derivative or it is designated as such on imilial recognition. Financial liabilitics at
FVTPL are measured at (air value and net gains and losses, including any interest expense, arc recognised in statement of profit
and loss. Other financial lighilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the cfTective interest methaod, Interest
cxpense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in statement of profit and loss. Any gain or loss on derceognition
is also recognised in statement of profit and loss. Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as transaclion
costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down.
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{iii} Derecognition
Financial aysel

The Group derecognises a financial asscl when the contractual rights to the cash [Tows from the financial asset expire, or il
transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which the Group neither translers nor retains substantially all ot the risks
and rewards ol ownership and does not retain control of the financial asset,

If the Group enlers into transactions whereby il transfers assets recognised on its balunce sheet but retains either all or
substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets, the transferred assets arc not derecognised.

Where the Group has neither transferred a financial asset nor retains substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the
financial asset, the financial asset is derecognised if'the Group has not retained control of the financial asset. Where the Group
retains contral of the financial asset, the asset is continued Lo be recognised to the extent of conlinuing involvement in the
financial asset.

Financial fabilit

The Group derecognises a (inancial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled or expire. The Group
also derecopnises a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows under the modilicd terms are
substantially different. In Lhis case, a new financial lizhilily based on the modified terms is recognised at fair value. The
difference between the carrying amount of the financial hability extinguished and the new financial liability with modified
lerms is recognised in statement of profit and loss,

(iv) Offsetling

Financial assets and financial liabililics are offset, and the net amount presented in the balance sheet when, and only when,
the Group currently has a legally enlorceable right to set oft the amounts and it intends either to settle them on a net basis or
Lo realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

I. Tmpairment
{i) Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognizes loss allowance using the expected credit loss (FCL) model for the financial assets which are not fair
valued through profit or loss. Loss allowance for trade receivables with no significant financing component is measured al
an amount cqual to lifetime ECL. For all linancial assets with confractual cash flows other than trade receivable, ECLs are
measured at an amount equal to the 12-month ECL, unless there has been a significant increase in credit risk from initial
recognition in which case those are measured at lifetime ECL. The amount of ECL (or reversal) that is required to adjust
the loss allpwance at the reporting date is recognised as an impairment gain or loss in the Consolidated Statement of Protfit
and T.oss.

Measurement of expected credit losses

Trade receivables

In respect of trade receivables, the Group applies the simplified approach of Ind AS 109, which requires measurement of
loss allowance al an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses. Lifetime expected credit losses are the expected credit
losses that resull from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial instrument.

Other financial axyels
In respect of ils other financial assets, the Group assesses if the credit risk on those financial assets has imcreased
significantly since initial recognition. 1f the credit risk has not increased significantly since initial recognition, the Group
measures the loss allowance at an amount cqual to 12-month expected credit losses, clse al an amount equal to the lifetime
expected cradil losses.

When making this assessment, the Group uses the change in the risk of & delaull oce over the expected life of the
financial assel. To make that assessmenl, the Group compares the risk of a defaull pdy
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balance sheet date with the risk ol a default occurring on the financial assct as at the date of initial recognition and considers
reasonable and supportable information, that is available without undue cost or effort, that is indicative of significan
increases in credit risk since initial recognition. The Group assumes that the eredit risk on a financial asset has not increased
significantly since initial recognition il the financial asset is determined o have low credit risk at the balance sheet date.

Fresentation of allowance for expected credit losses in the balance sheet
L.oss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted [rom the gross canrying amount of the assets,

(ii) Impairment of non- financial assets

The Group's non-financial assets, other than inventories and deferred tax assels are revicwed at each reporting date to
determine whether there is any mdication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount
is eslimated.

For impairment testing, assets that do not gencrate independent cash inflows are grouped together into cash-generating
units ((2(1)s). Bach CGU represents the smallest group of assets that penerates cash inllows that are largely independent
of the cash inllows of other assets or CGLs,

The recoverable amount of a CGU (or an individual asset) is the higher of its value in use and ils fair value less costs to
sell. Value in use is based on the estimated tuture cash Mows, discounted to their present value using a pre-lax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the CGU {or the asset).

An impairment loss is recognised if the caying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its estimated recoverable amount.
[mpairment losses are recognised in the statement of profil and loss. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a
changg in the estimates used lo determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the exlent that
the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined net of depreciation or
amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation that can be
cstimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic henelits will be required to settle the obligation. Provisions
are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows (represenling the best estimate of the expenditure required Lo
seitle the present obligation al the balance sheet date) at a pre-tax rale thal reflects current market assessments of the ime valuc
of money and the risks specific to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognised as finance cost. Expected luture
pperating losses are not provided or.

Contingeni liabilities

A conlingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose caistence will be confirmed by the oceurrence
or non-oceurence of one or more uncerlain future events beyond the control ol the Group or a present obligation that is nol
recogniscd because it is not probahle that an outflow of resources will be required Lo scttle the obligation. A contingent liability
also ariscs in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognised because it cannot be measured reliably.
The Group does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the consolidaled financial statements.

Contingenl asscls

Contingenl assels are not recognised but disclosed in the consolidated financial statements when an inflow of economic benefits
is probable.

Share issue cxpenses
Share issuc cxpenses are adjusted against the Securities Premium Account as permissible under Section 52 of the Companies

Act, 2013, Lo the extent any balance is available for utilisation in the Securitics Premium Account. Share issue expenses in
excess of the balance in the Securities Premium Account is expensed in the Consolidated Slateinent of Profit and Loss,
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L.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognized upon translior ol control of promised products or services to customers/patients in an amount that reflects
the consideration the Group expects W reeeive in exchange for those products or services, Revenue is measured at transaction
price net of rebates, discounts and laxes. A receivable is recognised by the Group when the control is fransferred as this is the
case of point in time recognition where consideration is unconditional because only the passage of time is required, When either
party to a contract has performed, an enlity shall present the contract in the balance sheet as a contract asset or a confract
liability, depending on the relationship between the entily’s performance and the payment. The Group applies the revenue
recognition criteria to each component of the revenue lransaclion as set out below,

Income from healtheare services

Kevenue from healthcare services is recognized as and when relaled services are rendered and include services for patients
undergoing treatment and pending for discharge, which is shown as unbilled revenue under other current financial assets. The
Group considers the terms of the contract and its customiry business praclices Lo determine the transaction price. The transaction
price is the amount of consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for the services, excluding amounts
collected on behalf of third parties (for example, ndirect laxes).

Income [rom sale of pharmaey products to out-patients

Revenue [rom pharmacy products is recognized as and when the control of products is transferred to the customer. The Group
considers its customary business practices to determine the transaction price. The transaction price is the amount of
consideration o which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for the products, excluding amounts collected on behallof
third partics (Tor example, indirect taxes).

Contract assets and liabilities

Contract assets are recogniscd when there is excess of revenue eamed over billings on contracts, Contract assels are classificd
as umbilled receivables (only act of invoicing is pending) when there is unconditional right to receive cash, and only passage ol
time is required, as per conlractual lerms.

Unearned and deferred revenue (“contract liability™) is recognised when there is billinas in excess of revenues,

Other income

HRent income

Kental income from sub-leasing and leasing is recognised in statement of profit and loss of the lease except where the rentals
are structured to increase in line with expecled general inflation. Lease incentives granted are recognised as an integral part of
the total rental income, over the term ol the lease.

Interest income

Inlerest income is recognised using the effective interest rate methed. The elTective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
cstimated future cash receipts through the expecled life of the financial asset to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset,
When calculating the effective interest rate, the Group estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual
terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayvment, extension, call and similar options) but does not consider the
cxpected credit losses.

Sponsorship income

Sponsorship income is recognized when the underlying obligations are completed as per contractual terms,

Employee benefits

The Group's obligation towards various employee benelits has been recognised as follows:
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()

(ii)

Shorl term employee benelils

Shorl-term employee benelit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the related service is
provided. A liability is recognised for the amount expected (o be paid e.g., wages and salarics, short-term cash bonus, cle.,
i the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided hy the
employee, and the amount of obligation can be estimated reliably.

Long term employee benefits
Defined contribuiion plans

A defined contribution plan is & post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed contributions into a separate
entity and will have no legal or constructive oblipation to pay [urther amounts.

Provident fund, employee’s state insurance scheme and lahour welfare fund are defined contribution plans. These
contributions are recognised as an expense in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss during the period in which the
employee renders the related services.

Defined benefit plans
A defined henefil plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a delined contribution plan,
The Group has deflined benefit plan, Gratuity.

The Group’s net obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is calculaled by estimating the amount of fulurc benefit that
employees have earned in the current and prior periods, discounting thal amount and deducting the fair value o any plan
assets, if any.

‘The calculation of delined benefit obligation is performed annually by a gualified actuary using the projected unit credit
inethod.

Remensurements of the net defined benefit liahility, which comprise actuarial gains and losses, are recognised in other
comprehensive income (OC1). The Group determines the net interest expense/(income) on the net defined benclil liabil iy
for the period by applying the discount rate used Lo measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning ol the annual
period to the net defined benefit liability, taking into account any changes in the net defined benefit labilily during the
period as a result of contributions and benefit payments. Net interest expensc and other expenses related to defined benefit
plans are recognised n Consolidated Statement ol Profit and Loss.

The discount rates used lor determining the present value of the obligation under defined benefit plan, are based on the
market yields on government securities as at the balance sheet date.

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in benefit that relates to past
service ("past service cost' or ‘past service gain') or the gain or loss on curtailment is recognised immediately in Consolidated
Statement of Profit and T.oss. The Group recognises gains and losses on the settlement ol a defined benefit plan when the
sctllement ocours,

(iif) Other long term employee benefits — compensated absenecs

The employees can carry-forward a portion of the unulilized accrued compensated absences and utilize it in future service
perinds or receive cash compensation on termination ol employment. Since the compensated absences do not fall duc
wholly within twelve months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service and are also not
expueted to be utilized wholly within twelve months afler the end of such period, the benefit is classified as a long-lerm
employee benefit. The Group records an obligation [or such compensated absences in the period In which the employce
renders the services that increase this entitlement. The obligation is measured on the basis of independent actuarial
valualion using the Projected Unit Credit Method. Re-measurement as a result of expericnce adjustments and changes in
actuarial assumptions are recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss.
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N.

Income tax

Tncome tax comprises current and deferred tax. 1t is recognised in Consolidaled Statement of Profit and Loss except to the
extent thal it relales to an item recopnised dircetly in equity or in other comprehensive income,

(i) Current lax

Current lax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year and any adjustment
to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The amount of current tax reflects the best estimate of the tax
amount expeeled to be paid or received after considering the uncertainty, it any, related to income taxes.

Current tax asscts and current tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally cnlorceable right to set off the recognised
amounts, and it is intended to realise the assel and settle the liability on a net basis or simultaneously.

(i) Deferred tax

Dieferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary dilTerences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities [or
financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax assets are recogniscd
to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profils will be available against which they can be used.

Deferred tax is measured al the lax rates that are expected Lo apply to the period when the assct is realised or the liability
is settled, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting dale.

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Group
cxpects, at the reporting date, Lo recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Delerred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax liahilitics and assets,
and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable enfity, or on dilferent tax entities, but
they intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on 4 nel basis or their tax assets and liabililics will be realised
simullaneously.

Segment reporting

Operating scgments are reported in a manner consistent with the inlernal reporting provided to the chicl operating decision
maker. The Holding Company’s Managing Director assesses the financial performance and position of the Group, and makes
strategic decision and has been identitied as the chief operating decision maker. ‘The Group is engaged in the business of
providing healthcare services, which has been delined as one business segmenl. Accordingly, the Group's activilics/business is
reviewed regularly by the Holding Company's Managing Director from an overall business perspective, rather than reviewing
its services as individual standalone componenls.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders (after
deducting attributable Laxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares outslanding during the period. Partly paid cyuity
shares are treated as a fraction of an equity sharc Lo the extent that they are entitled to participate in dividends relative Lo a fully
paid equity share during the reporting period. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period is
adjusted for events such as bonus issue, bonus clement in a rights issue, share split and reverse share split {consolidation of
shares) that have changed the number of equity shares outstanding, without a corresponding change in resources.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss fur Lhe period attributable to equity sharcholders
and the weightcd average number of shares oulstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential
equity shares.

Business Combination
Business combinations, othet than through commaon control transactions, are accounted for using the purchase (acquisilion)

method. The cost of an acquisition is messured as the fair value of the assels given, equity instruments issued and liabilities
incurred or assumed at the date of exchange. The cost of acquisition also includes the fair value of any contipgent consideration.
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Identifiable assets acquired and Habilitics and contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are measured initially
al their fair value on the date of acquisition. Business combinations through common control transactions are accounted on a
pooling of interest method. Under pooling of interest method, the assets and liabilities of the combining cntities are reflected at
their carrying amounts, with adjustments only o harmonise accounting policies,

Gioodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggrepate of the consideration translerred and the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests, and any previous interest held, over the net identifiable asscls acquired and liabilities
assumud. [T the fair value of the net assets aequired is in cxcess of the aggregate consideration trunsforred, the Group re-assesses
whether il has correctly identified all of the assels acyuired and all of the liabilities assumed and reviews the procedures used
to measure the amounts to be recognised at the acquisition date. If the re-assessment still results in an excess ol the fair value
of net asscls acquired over the aggregate consideration transferred, then the gain is recognised in Other Comprehensive Income
{OCI) and accumulated in other equity as capital reserve. However, if there is no clear evidence of bargain purchase, the entity
recognises the gain directly in other equity as capital reserve, without routing the same through OCI. Consideration transferred
includes the fuir valucs of the assets transferred, lahilitics incurred by the Group to the previous owners of the aequiree, and
equity interests issucd by the Group.

Consideration transferred also includes the fair value of any contingent consideration. Consideration transferred dovs not
include amounts relaled Lo the settlement of pre-existing relationships. Any goodwill that arises on account of such business
combination is tested annually for impairment.

Any contingent consideration is measured at fair value at the date of acquisition. [Tan obligation to pay contingent consideration
that meets the definition of a financial instrument is classified us cquily, then it s not re-measured and the settlement is
accounted for within other cyuity. Otherwise, other contingent consideration is re-measured at fair value at each reporting date
and subsequent changes in the [air value of the contingent consideration are recorded in the Consolidated Statement of Protit
and Loss. A contingent liahility ol the acguiree is assumed in a business combinalion only il such a liability represents a present
obligation and arises from a past evenl, and its fair value can be measured reliubly. On an acquisition-by-acquisition basts, the
(iroup recognises any non-controlling inlerest in the acquiree either at fair value or al the non-controlling interest’s
proportionate share of the acquirce’s identifiable net assets,

Transaction costs that the Group incurs in connection with a business combination, such as Stamp Duty for title transfer in the
name of the Group, finder’s fees, legal lees, due dilipence fees and other professional and consulting fees, are expensed as
incurred.
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Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Al amounts are in INR million, unless olherwise stated)

5, Right-of-use assels and lease liahilities
Information about leases for which the Group is a lessee is presented below:

Partienlars Leaschold land Buildings et Mighe - M

equipments assefs
Halance as al 31 March 2025 T737.01 4342 la 134,22 521399
Halance as al 31 March 2024 T45.34 316928 1413 3.015.65

The fillowing 35 the movement in lease ligbilities during the year ended 31 hfarch 2024 and 31 Mlarch 2(125.

Tarticnlars

Lease liabilities

Balance as at 1 April 2023 360057
Additions during the year 17.95
Dreletions during the year (1281}
Interest cxpenses* 364 15
Fayment of lcase labilily {215.19)
Balance as at 31 March 2024 3,To3.N7
Additions during the year 1,351,33
Imteresl expenses 33332
Tavment of lease liahilily (Ai0.65)
Balance as at 31 Muarch 2025 3.041.87
# Includes amonnt of NI nil (31 March 2024: INK 7245 million) capitalised in capilal work in progress and property, plant and equipment,

Current e
As at 31 March 20235 423.28
As at 31 March 2024 260L6G0
Now = current —
As al 31 March 2025 4,614,59
As a3 March 2024 3,503,27

The Gronp is not exposed to fiture cashflows reluling to extension { termination oplions, residual value gnaruniees.

A. The following are the amouats recopnised in Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss:

—— For the year  For the year ended

) ended 31 March 2024
Drepreciarion of righl-ul-use assets (refer note 28) 10733 101 53
Titerest cxpense nn lewse liabilities (refor note 27) 333.32 291.70
Rent expense relating Lo shorl-term leases and low value assets 96.37 U1, 10
Totul 33704 434,33

B. The table below describes the nature of Group's leusing activities by type of tight-of-use assel recognised on the halunce sheel:

As at 31 March 2025

X Mo, of right-of-use Range of A,‘.t_ra““ Mo, of leases with Mo, of leases with
Right of nse asscts remaining term remaining lease E : 1
assels leased 3 % extension oplions  lermination oprions
{in years) term {in vears)
Leaschold land I 91,00 91,106 -
Buildings
Huospitals [ lo.68 - 38.19 25.50 i3 &
Residential premizes (Morse Hostel) 2 .00 - [9.52 13.51 2 2
Labs i 7401 7.01 £ g
Medical equipments Z (.67 - 8.00 4.4 1 2
As i 31 March 2024 -
Range of Average

Mo, of right-of-use

Ma. of leases with Moo of leases with

Right of use asscts assels leased semalsing fm b mﬂm,ml',' R extension options  lermination options
{in years) term (in vears) 2
Leasehold land 1 92.00 200 - -
Buildings
Hospitals i 17.68 - 35.1% 26.75 0 &
Residential premises (Murse Hoslel) 1 2002 2002 1 l
Lahs 1 801 g0l # B
Medical equipments 0.50 - 1.17 (.83 2 2

The Gronp determines the leases term as eillier the non-cancellable perivd ol the lease and any additionul periods when there is an enforcenble uplion o extend
the lease and it is reasonably certain thal the Group will exiend lhe teem, or a lease period in which it is reasonably cortain that the Group will not exercisc a

right to terminate. The lease term is reassessed if there is u significant change in eircomstances.




Paras Healtheare Limited {formerly known as Paras Heallheare Private Limited)
CIN :- UBSLIMIRI9ETPLOO35823

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year coded 31 Mareh 2025
(ANl amounis are in INIE million, unless otherwise stated)

C. The tahle below provides dotails regarding the contructul mulurities of lease liabililies as at 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024 on an undiscounted hasis:

Particulars A al ARt
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Less than one vear 443,80 28275
Adter one year but pot bonger than five years 193704 1,263 81
More than [ve vears 15216.41 13,595.77
Tutal 17,6020 15,142.33

. Smmmary of signiticant leases:

Holding Company

a)

b)

€)

d)

Paras HMRI Hospital, Palon

The Holding Company had entered inlo an Operations and Management Agreement dated 1 Augnst 2011 with Hai Medicars and Research Institule
Private Limited, Patna (HMKI) under the terms of which the Iolding Company had expanded and upgraded HMEDs existing 100-bed single-specialty
haspital to a 300-hed super-specially hospital and then Operating and Managing this upgraded facility for a period ol 32 years upon puyment of a [ixed
monthly comsideration o MR (il December 2010 and a fixed percentage of net revenue from Junuary 2007 (computed as per the terms of the
apreement). The Holding Company had receivalble from HMRD IME 386,80 million (31 Murch 2024: INR 43720 million), which is guarantecd by the
personal, irrevocable and unqualified guarantes of v Ahmed Abdul Hai vide deed of guarantes executed on 10 August 2001 in the Holding Company”s
[wvour. Peclormance of this goarantce had also heen seeured by D, Ahmed Ahdul Hui by creating a charge on the land admeasuring 2.61 acres situated at
Rarn Dazaar, Bailey Road, Pama of which he is the legal owner. The Fuolding Company and TIMRI formally agreed that repayment would eommence in
the form of monthly instalments as per the terms of agreement. The parly vielating the terms of the agreement therchy cansing the agreement o be
termninated shall pay the other parly remaining balunce as compensation. The 1lolding Company has also revised its lease agreement for 18-year lerm
w.e. £ 01 April 2024, secording to the apreement, Oie monthly rent is a fived monthly rental with csealation on periodic basis alongwith lixed percenluge
of the net revenue of this unil of the Holding Company, over a specified threshold,

Paras Global Hospital, Darbhanga

The Helding Company had entered inlo an Operations and Management Agreement on 1 December 20011 with a third party at Darbhangs loculion, under
the terms of which the thind party hed buill o multi-specialty hospital on a plot owned by it which wonld then be operated and manuged by the Tlolding
Company for two continuous periods of 13 years each, upon payment of 3 monthly eonsideration which is fixed rental for the (sl yeur amd then a fixed
pereentage of net revenue of this Lospital from the sceond year onwards, Third party had provided the bure shell of the building and the Ilolding
Company hud installed necessary equipment, firrniture and machinery that was necessary.

Paras Hospitals, Panchhula

The Holding Company had entered into u Jeuse deed on 8 Oelober 2006 with a third party at Panchknla location, under the terms of which lessors had
constructed & 220-bed hospital building for e TTolding Company which had been then be leased to the Holding Company for duration of 30 years. The
monthly rent is a fixed monthly reotal or fived percentage of the net revenuc of this unit of the Holding Compuny, whichever is higher. Lessor had
provided the bare shell of the building along with basic facilitics like lifis, electrical fittings, TP, ele. and the Holding Company lad installed necessary
equipment, furnilure and machinery that is necessary,

Paras Yash Kothari Huspital, Kaonpur

The Holding Company has entercd info a lease deed on 30 July 2021, with third party ol Eanpur location under the terms of which the lessor has
conslrucled a bare shell stucture and the Holding Company would operate, manege and run a super specialty hospital pest carmying ont necessary
struciural elianges. The lessor had handed aver the churge of hospilal on 07 October 2021, Basis the agreement, the Holding Company is requited to muke
paviment of a fixed monthly considerution from the rent commenezment date with escalation ¢lanse after a speeificd perind,

Subsidiary Company - Paras Healtheare (Ranehi) Private Limited

(3]

Paras HEC Hospital, Ranchi

Pursuant to the proposal by Heavy Engineering Corporation Ltd (hereinafter reterved to as "HEC"), a puhlic sector undertaking, the Subsidiary Company,
through a hid hy its Holding Company (Paras Tlealthcare Private Limited), was awarded with the contract to build and operate 2 mulii-speciully hospital in
Hanchi, As per the lerms ol e concession agreement, dated 10 January 2018, HEC hand over the existing hospilal with 50 beds 1o the Subsidiary
Company along with the land adjacent to it to toild & multi-specialty hospital of 300 beds. During the leaure of the agreement, the monthly rent is
upprepate o fxed monthly rental as well as fived pereentage of the revenue of this unil of the Subsidiary Company. Theretore, the Lease Deed had boen
execuled by and between HEC and Paras Healthcare {Runchi) Privale Limiled PHRPL dated 14 August 2019 to occupy the said Promiscs for a torm of 35
years extendable to 10 years (fon years) on same lerms & conditions and the PITRPL shall run and operate a multi-specialiy Hospital in the brand name of
Paras [IEC Hospital,

Subsidiary Company - Plus Medicare Hospitals Trivate Limited

0

Paras Trumhbaon Hospital, Srinagar

The Subsidiary company had entered into a lease deed on 02 December 2022 with a thivd party at Srinagar location, under the terms of which lessurs had
conztrmcted a 200-hed hospita] building for the Subsidiary Company which had been then he lewsed o the Subsidivry Company. Duration of this
arrangemenl s 30 years, the monthly rent is a fived monthly rental, Lessor would provide the building and non medical equipments in e property and
the: Subsidiury Company would install necessary medical equipment, for funclioning of the hospital.




Paras Healtheare Limited (formerly lnown as Paras Healtheare Private Limited)
CIN := UBSIIOHR1987PLCOIS823

Notes o the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Al amounts are in INK million, unless otherwise stated)

6. Capital work-in-progress

Particulars ARl an.al
- 31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Balanee as at the heginning of ithe year 2B7.76 777,38

Add: additions during the year 229.08 1,360.79

Less: amount capitalised during the year (138.72) (1, 450.41)

Balance as at the end of the year 378.12 247.76

| Motes
() Capital work-in-progress ageing schedule as at 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024 -
Amount in capital work-in-progress for a period of
Particulurs Tatal
Less than 1 year 1o 2 years 2 to 3 vears More than 3 years
31 March 2025 174,84 744 9382 12,02 378.12
31 March 2024 179.%4 U577 12.03 - 187.76

() Capital work in progress includes property, plant and equipment under construetion, installation and cosl of wssel not ready for nse as at year end.

| {c) There are no such projects in progeess, whose eompletion is overdue or has exceeded its cost compared to ils original plan as of 31 March 2025 and 11
i Mareh 2024,

{l} The cost that are directly atributable o the acyuisition or construetion of property, plunt und equipment las been capitalised during the year, refer note 33.

(P iz space hos been infentionally lgft Wank)




Paras Healtheare Limited (formerly known as Paras Healtheare Private Limited)
CIN :- USS1I0HR 1987 P OISR

Moles 1o the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(All amounts ave in INR million, unless otherwise stated)

7. Goodwill

Particulars Asat Anal
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
A, Gruss carryving amount
Dalance as at the beginning and the eud of the year 4644 ) 46.44
B. Acenmulated amortisation
Balance as al the beginning and cnd of the year - -
Met carrying value 46.44 46.44

Motes:
The Group performs test for goodwill impaicment annually on 31 Marech or il indicators of impairment arise, such as the effeets of ohsolescence, demand,
compelition and other coonomic facturs of on occurrence of un evenl or change in circumstances that would maore likely than nat reduce the fuir value below its
carrying amonnt, When determining the fair value, we utiliee various assumptions, incliding operating resulls, business plans and projections of future cash
flows.

[uring the year ended 31 March 2025 and 31 Marcl 2024, the management has reviewed the camying value of its goodwill against the reenvershle umounis of
these cash penerating units (CGlls) (Udaipur Leaschold Land & Building), using internal and extemal infurmation available. Management had recorded an
impairment of INR. il in the Consolidated Statemcnt of Profit and Loss. The management believes that any reasonable possible changes in the key sssumptions
used would not canse the CGU s carrving amount to exceed ils recoverable amaonnt,

The earrying anount of goodwill was allocated (o the cash generating units as fullows:

Particulars Ax al Asat

bl 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Plus Medicare Hospitals Private Limited 46.44 46.44
Gross carvying valoe 46.44 4044
Impairment festing

For fhe purposes of impairment testing, gondwill is allocuted to e CGU which represents the lowest level at which the gondwill is monitered for internal
managcment reporling purposes.

The recoverable amount of the cush senerating unit is hased on its value in use. The value in use of this unil is determined to be higher than the currying amount
wind an analysis of the calcululion’s sensitivity towards change in key assumptions did not identify any probable scenarios where the CGL recoverable amonnt
would fall below their carny amount. Value in usc is determined by based on the discounting the fulure cash flows generated from the continuing use of the
CGU. The calenlation was based on the followdng key wssumptions:

The following growth and discount rates have been eonsidered for the purpose of the impairment Lesting:

Parliculirs 31 March 2025 31 Murch 2024
Discount rate 17.46% 15.50%
Terminal grovwth rate 3.00%: 5005
Mumber of years for which cash Mows were congidercd 5 5
Assnmptinns

An impairment lest was carricd out s al the balance sheet date, details of the lesl are as outlined helow:

Diisconnt rate
The discount rates takes into consideration market risk and specific risk factors of the cash generating unit. The cash flow projections are based on the forceasts
made by the munagement.

Terminal growih rate
The terminal growll rates nsed arc in line with the growth rate of the industry in which the entities operates and are consistent with internal / cxternal sources of
information.

Semsitivity
The manugement believes that any reasonable possible changes in the key wssumplions would not cause the cush penerating unit's carrying amoont to exveed ils
recoverable amount.

P (This space s heen inentiomaliy fefi Bk




Paras Healtheare Limited (formerly known as Paras Healtheare Private Limited)
CIN - UASTI0ITR198TPLOUISR2S

Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Al amounts are in INR million, unless olherwise stated)

7A (Other intangible nssets

Particulars 31 Muarch 2025 31 March 2024
Software

A, GGross carrying amount
Kalance as at the beginning of the year 60.74 3558
Additioms during the year 378 25.36
Balance as at the end of the year 4,52 6lL74

B. Accumulated amortizalion

Balance as at the beginoiug of the year 32,34 24.43
Additions during the year 14.52 7445
Balaunce as at the end of the year 46,20 32.38
Mel carrying value 17.62 18,36

(Thix space hay been intenifonalty left blank)




Paras Healthewre Limited (faormerly known as Paras Healilicare Private Limited)
CIM - USSII0H R I9E TP LC0ISRES

WMaotes to the Consalidated Finaneinl Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(AN pounts arve in INR million, unless oilerwise stated)

8. Other fuancial assels =
Mon current Current

Partlculars Asal Axat As al As at

31 Mareh 2025 31 March 2024 31 March s M T'rlﬂ_ﬁ_:h 24
Secured, considered gomwd
Receivalle from HMRI 21890 HMI15 0.4 50,40
Unsecured, considered gond
Securily depusils R9.35 114.53 39,37 3.35
Balances with banks

- in deposits with mulenty of more than 12 months* 15.40 15.63 - -

Contract assets - unhilled revenue {refer node £07 - - 116.03 105,10
Aecrued inlerest on fived deposits - - 92 B6.26
ther reccivables” - 7 15688 0.53
Tuwial 323.71 37131 455,62 249,84

"Represen[l; Talanee recoverahle from LML refer nate 3(D%a) for details of security related 1o HMRET

=[neludes eanmarked halances of INE 14.92 million (31 March 2024: IME 1534 million) .

ncludes Initinl Public Cffering (TR0 cxpease of INIL 156,34 million as at 31 Murch 2025 (31 March 2024; Wil), carricd forward as other financial assets relating to sclling
shareholders. The amount will he recoverahle from the selling sharcholders in proportion to the shires offered to the public in the proposed PO, The [olding, company had filed
druft red herring prospeclus with the Securitics and Exchangs Board of India (SEBEI) on 31 July 2024 and lead received approval from BSE und MEL on 09 Sepiember 2024 and

from SEBL on 18 Oclober 2024,

9, :J_'_'a! ARARIR

As at Asal
Farticulars 31 Mavch 2025 31 March 2024
Tneome-tax reccivahle [met) - 341 346,20
Tutal 38041 346,20
10, Other asscis
Non current Corrent
Partivulurs As at As oal As at As al
31 March 2025 31 Murch 2024 31 March 2025 31 Murch 2024
Cupilal advances 101.97 15785 - -
Prepuid expenses - - 1814 11,30
Advances to employess - - 608 7.20
Advanccs to supplicrs = - 33.39 23,97
Totul 10197 157,85 5T.61 42,47
11. Inventorics
Aol As at

Particulars

31 March 2025

31 March 2024

Valued at lower of cost or nel realispble value

hedical drugs 20418 201,30
Slores and consumahlcs* 58.69 6, T
Total 26287 2748.00
* Tncludes provision for obsolets inventory amounting Lo INE. 18,45 million {31 March 2024: INE 1¥.45 million)
12. ‘Trade receivables
Asat As at

Partivulars

31 March 2025

31 March 2024

Tindisputed (rade receivables
Considered good, unsecyurad
Credit impaired

Less: Allpwanee for expected credil loss {refer note 37)
Constdered good, unsccurad
Credil impaired

Wet trade receivables

The Giroup's exposurs Lo credit risks and loss allowance related to trade receivables is disclused in note 37

(Thiz space fas beew intengiorally lefi blawk)

263020 1, 740.94

199,89 1038
243500 185132
{292.29) (177.87)
{199.29) {110.34)
2,345.91 1.563.11




I'aras Healtheare Limited {formerly known as Paras Healtheare Private Limited)

CIN
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Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(ANl amounts are in INR milllon, unless otherwise stided)

14,

I'rade receivables ageing schedule as al 31 March 2025:

Outstanding for I'olil.:m‘iug perinds fram date of invoice

Particulars Less than 6 G months to 1 More than 3 Taotal
1o 2 yenrs 1tn 3 vears
maniths VEHIS Vears
Tindisputed trade receivables
Caonsidered good, unsecured 1,797.52 J3R.56 266,48 23564 - 263820
Credil inspaired 10,68 644 16,80 B.32 157.25 15585
Tutal trade receivables 1,508.20 34540 28328 243.96 157,15 T,838.00
Less: Allowance for expected coedil loss {refer note 37)
Considered good, unaceurcd - [30.58) (r0.21) (150,440} - (292 29)
Credit impaired (10.68) (6,840 (16,80 (8.32) (157.25) (199,59
et trade receivables 1,797.52 307,58 195.57 45,24 - 234591
Lrnde receivables ageing schedule ns 00 31 March 2424:
Uutstanding for following perinds from date of invoice
Particulars T.ss than & & months to 1 ' : Muore thun 3 Tatal
1t 2 years 2 tw o} years
months RiEile] FLALS
Undisputed trade receivables
Consdered good, unsecured 97940 35839 267.69 135.40 - 174054
Credit impaircd 14.71 5.32 347 5.03 5095 110.38
Total trade receivables 904,17 363,71 27116 141.33 .95 1,851.52
Tess: Allowenee for expecled cradit loss (refer note 37)
Considered good, unsecured - {29.55) {32.42) {95 86 - (177.8%)
Credil impaired {14.71) (5.32) (34T [5.93) (R0.93) {11038
Net trade receivables 479.46 J28.8d4 21527 30.54 = 1.563.11

Notbes:

1. There ure no debis due by dircotors or other olficers of the Group or any of them either scverally or jointly with a0y other person or debts due by iims or private compunies
respectively in which any dircetor is a pariner or o director or 2 member.
2, There are no dispulzd or unbilled trade receivables, hence The same is not disclosed in e ageing schedule.

Cash and cosh equivalents

Partivubirs 4 Aa
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Bulanves will banks
- 00 gurrenl Accoinis 359,15 141.26
- with originel maturity of three months or less* 1.41 135
Cash on hand 11.58 11.97
Tuotal 37214 154.58
*Includes earmiurked balances of TMR 1.41 million (31 barch 2024: INE 1.35 million),
Bank balances other than cash and eash equivalents B .
. Asat Asal
Particulars ) 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Depusils with original maturily maore than three months but remaining maturity of less thun twelve months® 1,683.06 144828
Tatal 1,6R3.06 1,448.28

*Includes snrmarkad halances of IMK 1,681.55 million (31 March 2024: TNR L4665 million) .

(Tis gpece hoes bean intensionally feft blank




Paras Healtheare Limited (formerly known as Paras Healtheare Privade Limited)
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MNaotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(ALl sinounts are in INIU million, unless otherwise stated)

15,

u)

h)

€]

Fquity share capital

Ptk —_Asat31 March 2025 - As at 31 March 2024
Mumber of shares Amuouni Number of shares Aol
Authorized share capital
Equity shares of TNR 1/~ cach (31 March Z024: INE 1/- esch) 125 40000, [0 125.00 125 000,000 12500
125,000,000 125.00 125,000,000 125.00
Issued, subseribed and [ully paid-up shares
Fquity shares of IME 1/~ cach (31 March 2024: INE - ach) 97610660 97461 07.610.660 976l
87,610,660 -1 . 976 10,661 4.6l
Recvneiliation of sutherised share capital oulstanding af the end of the reporting year:
Particulars As at 31 March 2025 As ul 31 March 2024
- Number of shares Amount Number of shares Amnoung
At the heginning of the year 125,000,000 125,000 CRUTTTRILT] SiLIHK
Mdd: Increase in aullworised share capital™ - - 7,500,000 75.00
Add; Shares split during the year™ {equity shares of [ME 1/ each) - - 112,500,000 -
At the end of the year {equity sharves of INR 1/~ cach) 125,000,000 115.00 25,000, 00 125000

* Pursuant to the special resolution passed at extra ordinary peneral mesting held on 11 Seplember 2023 of Iolding Company, the members approved fo inercase the
authorised shure capital of the TTolding Company Gom TNR 30200 million divided meoe 5,000,000 cquity shares of INK 10¢- cach to INE 70000 million divided into 5,000,000
equity shares of TR 10/~ cach and turther on 10 March 2024, the members approved (o increase the authorised share capital of the Holding Company from IMR 7000
million divided into 7,000,000 equily shares of TNE 10 each to TNE 125,00 millian divided info 12,500,000 equity sharcs of INR 10/~ cach.

A Pursuant to the resolulions passed al board meeting and extra ordinary gencral meeting held on 18 March 2024 and 20 March 2024 respectively, stock split of one syuity
share having face value of INR 10¢- cach intn ten cquity shares having face value of INE. 1/~ each his been approved.

Heenneiliation of issued share capital outstandiog af the beginwing and af the end of the reporting year:

Farticulars As at 31 March 2025 As al 31 March 2024

Number of shares Amuvuni Number of shares Amount
At the heginning of the year W76 GG 9761 3,675,964 36.76
Add: Beclassification [rom [onancial labiling®* - - 1,204 569 12.04
Add: Shares split during the year™ (equity shares of INR 1/~ cach) - - 43,924 797 -
Add:; Bomus shares issued during the year™* - - A8 H205,330 48.51
Outstanding at the end of the year OTaL0G60 9741 97,0 10,661 97.61

** Nuring the year ended 31 March 2024, en eddendum (o the Investiment and Share Purchase Agreement was made cffective trom 28 March 2024, The Investor hus
uncunditivnally and irrevocably waived the Buy Back Option and undertukes that it shall not issue sny Buy-Back notice in furtherenee (hereoll Conseguenily, there are no
longer any contractual ohligations and the financial instruments hiave been reclassitied as Equity and Other Equity.

# Pursuant 1o the resolutions passcd at board meeting and extra ordinary general meeting held on 18 Mirch 2024 and 20 March 2024 respectively, stock split of one cquity
share having face value of INK 10/~ sach inly len equily shares having face value of INR 1/~ cach haz heen approved,

“pursuant Lo the resulutions passed at beard meeting and extra ordinery genersl meeting held on 18 March 2024 and 20 March 2024 respeotively, members have approved a
sum of INR 4551 million, heing a part of the amount slanding Lo e credit of securities premivm of the Holding Company, be capitalized and applicd for the purpnse of
imsuance of 48 805,330 eyuily shares of NI 1/- each 1o be alloted and credited as fully paid up honus shares to such members holding fully paid up eguity shares as per the
record of depositorics as the heneticial owmer of shares on 25 March 2024 ("Recond date") in the proportion of | benus equity shares for every 1 existing caquity shares (1:1)
held by such persons respeclively on the recond date.

The rights, preferences and restrictions to ench class of shares including restrictions on the distribution of dividends aod repayment of capital (for all
shareholders),

The Holding Company has anly one class of equity shures having par value of INR. 1/~ per share (31 Marel 2024 TMIL 1/ per share). Fach halder of equity shares is entitled
o ome vobe per share with o right 1o receive per share dividend declared by the Holding Company. In the event of liguidetion of the Holding Company, the holders of equity
shiares are entitled to recoive remaining assets of the Holding Company (aller distiibution of all preferential smounts) in proportion o the number of equity shares held by the
sharchaolders.

(This space fas heew intenfionally lafi blank)




Paras Healihenre Limited (formerly known as Paras Healtheare Privaie Limited)
CIN :- USSTTIHRIY8TPLCO3SE23

Motes fo the Consolidated Financial Stutements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(AN amounts are in INK million, unless atherwise stated)

d)  Details of shares held by sharehalders holding more than 5% of the agpregate shares in the Holding Company:
As ul 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
MNumber of shares % of holding Nomber of shares Yo of holding

Tarticulars

“Equity shares of INR 1/ each fully paid

Do, Tiharminder Kumar Migar (with nomines sharcholders) T3.519.278 75.32% T3,519.280 T5.32%
Commeding Limited {Tnvestor)* 24091380 24,68% 24091 380 4 08%
97,610,658 THHLO0 % D7 A1DGGH 100.00%

+Subseyuent (o year end, pursuznt Lo the share purchase agreement daled 07 April 2025 and 11 Apnil 2025, Commelina Limited {Investor) biss transferred cortain Byuity
Shiares held by it in the Holding Company to certain endilies on 0% April 2025 and 16 Agpil 2025 aggregsting to TART003 eyuily shares.

€} Details of shares held by promoters of the Iolding Company:

As at 31 March 2025 As ni 31 March 2024 % Change in
: sharcholding
Mumber of shares % of holding Momhber of shares % of holding  guping the year

Farticulars

Fauity shares of INK 1~ (31 March 2i24: INK 1/-) each fully paid

Dr. Dhaeminder Kumer Magar (with nomines sharcholders) T3 519278 T3 32% 74,519,280 75,32% b
Wirs. Giurdeep Kaur Magar 1 * - . -
1 * . A i

Ms. Ranya Magar
¥ % below rounding off norms

— As at 31 March 2024 Asat31 March 2023 % Change in

Particalars shareholding
Mumber of shares % of holding Number of shares % ol holding  guring the year

Equity shares of INR 1- (31 March 2023: INR 11/~ Jeach fully paid .

Tor. [harminder Kumar Magar (with nominee shareholders) 73,519,280 73.52% 31675554 100% =24 .04%

Notes;

a) The ubuve information is furnished as per shareholder register of the Holding Company as al 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024,
b} Tromoters” for the purpose of this disclosurs meuns promoters a5 defined under Seclion 2(6%) of Companies Act, 2013,

) Aggregate number of shares issued for consideration other than cash during the perind of five years immediately preceding the reporting date
The Holding Company has nol issued bonus shares, equily shares for eonsideration olher Man cash and also no shares has been bought back during the periud of 5 vears
immediotely preceding the respective reporling periods except the following.

Issue of bunus slares

_ Asat3] March 2025 Asat 31 March 2024
Particulars Mumber of shares Mumber of shares
Amount Amount
Fauity shares of INR. 1/~ each issucd ' E - 48,805,330 4841

g} The Holding Company vide spesial board resolution dated 03 Jun 2024 and shareholder resolution dated 04 June 2024 has approved the Employes Slock Option Plan, 2024
and aulliorised to create, offer, issus and allet 2,196,239 employes stock options under Employes Stock Option Plan, 2024, for the benefii of emplovees and directoes of the
I‘ID]dinE,{?ﬂmPUﬂ’}' s deeided ]J}' the bnard. l-"cn.d[ng the number q‘l"nmiuns L',I'iﬂiltd.. [{T4] aﬂjus.'Tm.cm has heen recorded in these consalideted finuneial slalements.

(Thix space hos been intentionally left blank)




Paras Healtheare Limited (formerly known as Paras Healtheare Privale Limited)
CIN - URSTIOHR [98TPLOCD35R23

Mutes (o the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Al amonnts are in INIE million, unless atherywise stated)

16, Other equity

Particulars

Az atl
31 March 2023

Az al
31 March 2024

a. Securities preminm {nofe a)

Balance as el the beginning of the yvear

Add: reclassitied from other financial liabilin®
Leszs: utilised on issue of bonus shares
Balauce as al the end of the year

b, Relained enrnings (note )
Balunee as at the heginning of the year
MAdd: reclassilied om ether Noancial lability®
Less: Inss during the year
Add; other comprehensive income for the vear
HKe-measurement loss on defined benefit plans (ned of tax)
Balance as at the end of the year

Total ather equity{ath)

260249 5271
3 2,548.59
= {d48.81)

260249 2,602,49

8404 201.59
- 4046
{579.83) {153.31)

03  (370)

104.42 5495
270731 328747

*Nuring, the vear ended 31 March 2024, an addendum to the Investment and Sharc Purchase Agreement was made cffoctive from 28 March 2024, The Investor has
unconditionzlly and irmevocubly waived the Buy Beck Option and wederlokes (hat it shill nod issue any Buy-Back notice in furtherance thereol. Consequently, there are no

longer any conlractueal obligations and the fnancial instruments have been reclassitied as Equity and Other Equity,

Nature and purpose of reserves
1) Securifies preminm

The apgregate amownl of premivmn received on the shares is transterred o a separate account ¢alled "securities premium". The same will be wilised in accordance with 1he

prowvizions of the Companics Act, 2013 and related provisions.

b) Retained carnings

Retained camings are the profits ¢ (Josses) thar the Grroup has made il date, less any transfors to gencral reserve, dividends or other distributions paid to sharcholders, It
ineludes re-messurement loss ¢ (zaim) on defined benelil plans, ned of taxes thal will ool be reclessified (o Consolidiled Statement of Profil and Loss, Retamed eawmnings 15 @

free reserve available 1o the Group and eligible for distribution to sharcholders,

{Ths space fas bean infanilonally lafi blank}




Paras Healtheare Limited (formerly kwown as Paras Healtheare Private Limited)
CIN :- USS1TOHR198TPLCO35523

Mates to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the vear ended 31 March 2025
(ANl amounts are in INTE million, unless otherwise sinted)

17. Non-current borrowings

Particulars

Asal As at
s 3 March 2025 31 March 2024
Secured, af ameriised cost
Term loans from banks 500380 3.991.53
Less: current maturitics of non-current borrowings {fH39.39) {A07.54)
Tuial nep-current borrowings 4,364.41 3.583.90

Terms of repayment and secnrity details:
Holding Cumpany

Nature of security

Terms of repayment

a) Term Loan [rom Bank A:

[ MR 2,162 76 million (31 March 2024: INR 1,427 47 million) ure secured primarily by:

a) First pari-pussu churge on movables fived wssels including movable plant and machinery,

machimery spares, lools and accessorics, furnilure, Dxlores, vehicles and ull other movable asscrs,
presenl ad future,

k) First pari-passu charge on current assets, operating cash Qows, receivables, commissions, revenues
of whatsncver nature end wherever arising, present and [ulure, intangibles, goodwill, uncalled capital,
present und [ulure.

¢} First pari-passy charge on Paras Hospital property at Block-C-1, Sushant Lok Phase-1, Hector-43,
Gurgaon-122002.

d} Fxclusive charge on property located at Udaipur.

) First puri-passu charge on leasehold property right of Kanpar.

[) Corparate Guarantee of Plus Medicare Hospitals Private Limited.

i) INK 7632 million (31 March 2024: INR 148.83 million) arc secured primarily by

) Second pari-passy charge on movebles [ixed assets including movable plant and machinery,
mgchinery sparcs, tools end sccessories, forniture, fixtures, vehicles and all other movable asseds,
present and future.

b) Second pari-passu charge on currenl wssels, operating cash flows, receivables, commissinns,
revenues of whatsnover nature und wherever arising, present and future, intangibles, goodwill,
uncalled capital, present wnd fiture.

¢} Second pari-passu charge on Paras Hospital properly at Bloek-C-1, Sushant Lok Thase-l, Seetor-13,
Ciurpaon-1 22002,

i) Beepayiment ranging from 9 o 96 inslallments aggrogating
to MR 2,172.57 millon

Rule of interest range from 7.15% pa. o 9.57% pa
(31 March 2024; 7.15% poa lo 8.88% pa)

i} Repayment in 12 installments aggregating to INK 76.32
million

Rate of interest $.08Y: pa.
(31 March 2024: 9.25% p.a.)

b} Term Lyan from Bank B:

MR | 272,72 million {31 March 2024: INR. 1,014,321 million) are secured primarily by

) First pari-passu charge by way of equitahle morigage over land & huilding of Gurgson unit,

h) First puri-passu charge by way of hypothecalion over all movable fxed wssels, present & future,
exgepl (he ones which are exclusively charged to existing lender(s) for Borrower; (including Kanpur
Llnit)

¢} First peri-passu charge by way of hypothecalion over all eurrent assels, present & ulure intangibles,
gomdwill, uncalled capital present and (dure.

Repayment ranging from 22 te 36 nstaliments aggregating to
INR 1,272.72 millivn

Rate of interest range from 7.61% pa o 3.85% pa
(31 March 2024: 5.75% pa o B.7%% pa)

¢} Term Loan from Bank C:

IME 309,74 million (31 Murch 2024: TMR 169,73 million) are secured primarily by:

a) Fxchusive charge on commercial property owned by the Company located at 1st Floor, Commereial
Promises, (without roof right) Tower-i, (wilh 10 Car Parking Spaces ( Slols bearing Mos. 87 to 96
loeuted at Bascment - 11 of the Project in Taras Twin Towers' ina G + 11 Storeyard Building with 3
level Rascment, situated in the Revenus Fstate of Yilluge Iaiderpur Viran, Sector-54, Goll Course
Road, istrict Gurgaon, Haryana-122022.

b} Subservient charge on movable fixed ussels (eurrent and future).

] Subservient charge un current assel (eurrent and future).

Repayment ranging from 4 Lo 15 instaliments aggregating Lo
IME 309,74 millwn

Rate of intercst range from $9.50% pa 1o 96050 pa.
(31 March 2024: 9.50% pa)

(This space has baen intentionally feff blank)




Paras Ilealtheare Limited (formerty known as Paras Healtheare Private Limited)
CIN :- USSLIOHR I 987P1.0C035423

Mates to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Al amounts are in INK million, unless otherwise stated)

Subsidiary Company - Paras Healthcare (Ranchi) Private Limited

Matnre of secarity ‘Terms of repayment

a) Term Loun from Baok B

i) TN 480,00 million (31 Mareh 2024 IME 500000 million) are secured primarily by Fepayable m 26 installments appregating o INI 480,00
2. Exclusive charge by way of hypolhecalion over all movable assets million.

b. Cxelusive churge by way of hypothecation over all current assets, present or future, Rate of interest at 5.67% pa. o 8.97% pa

¢. Unconditional and irevocable corporate guarantee of Parws Healthcare Limited (formerly known as (31 March 2024 ; 5.75% pa. to §.88% p.a)
Paras Healtheare Private Limited )

i) TMR 5488 millions (31 March 2024: INR 61.38 million) are secured primarily by: Repayment ranging from 68 o 69 installments apprepaling
a. Exclusive charge by way of hypotheculion over specific medical cquipments. Lo [ME 34 88 mullion.

b. Corporate gusrantes of Taras Healtheare Limited (formerly known as Paras Tleslthcare Private  Rote of interest at 8.44% pa to 9.35% pa

Limited). (31 March 2024: E.6%9% p.a)

Suhsidiary Company - Flus Medicare Hospitals Private Limited

Mature of Sccurily Terms of repayment

a} Term Lioan trom Bank A:

i) IMKE 34738 milliun (31 Mocch 2024 : INI 36981 million) are sccured primarily by: Repayinent in 92 installments aggregating to INR 347,38
Pari Passu charge by way of Equitahle montgage of the Companys properly al millicn

a) Plot Mo 1, land in Khasrz No 847, 873, 876, & 877 Mi, Rev. Vill Shobhgpura, near Shobhgpura  Rate of interest 2.00% p.a (31 March 2024 - 9.0% pa
cirele, Tehail (iirwva, Disiricl Udaipur, (Rajasthan) 313001, 9.90% p.u.)

by Plot Mo 2-A land in Elasea Mo, 873, Rev Village Shohhagpura, Districl Udaipur, (Rajasthan)

313001,

i} INK 300,00 million (31 March 2024 - INR 300,00 million) arc sceured primarily by: Bepuyment in 74 installments aggregating to INR 300,00

u} Exclusive charge on movable fived asscts including movable plunt and muachinery, machinery million

spares, tools and acccssorics, furniture, fixtures, vehicles and all other movable assets, present and  Rate of interest §.85% pa.

firture, (31 Barch 2024 : 8.501% pato 8.835% pa)
b Exclusive charpe on curcent @ssets, operating cash tlows, receivables, commissions, revenues of

whalsoever hature and wherever arising, present and future.

¢} Corporate (fuarantee of Paras Healtheare Limiled (formerly known as Paras Healtheare Private

Limited).

) Mon Disposable Undertaking on sharcholding of the atoresaid Subsidiury Comnpany.

) Exclusive charge over property situated at Udaipur.

MNoles:
() During the year, Group has used the borrowings from banks [os e specific purpose tor which it was taken at the belance sheet date.
{b) Total undrawn tecm loan fagility as at 31 March 2025 amounts to MR 150019 millien (31 March 2024: NI 690,99 million) .

(T his space has been inlentionall Tgfi blank)




Paras Healtheare Limited (formerly knuwn as Paras Healtheare Private Limited)
CIN - USSTHIHRE19E7PLOCO3SE23

Motes to the Consolidated Finaneial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
{All amounts are in INR million, nnless atherwise stated)

174 Current borrowing

Particulars

As at Asal
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Secured, al miortised cost

Warking capital loans

Current maturitics of non-currenl Borrowings
Total

Terms of repayment and security details:
Haolding company:

2,275.51 148380
(3939 407.54
2.914.90 189134

Mature of seeurity

Terms of repayment

a) Cash Credit from Bank A:

ip IME 776,65 million (31 March 2024; INR AZ8.08 million) are secured peioarily by

a) First pari-passu charge on movables fixed wsels ncluding movable plant and machinery, machinery
sparcs, fools and seeessories, furnilure, Gxlures, vehicles and all ather movable assels, present and luture.

) First pari-pussu charge on current assets, operating cash flows, receivables, commissions, revenues of
whalsoever nalure and wherever arising, present and [ulure, intangibles, goodwill, uncalled eapital,

present and future

) First pari-passu charpe on Paras Tospilal property &t Block-C-1, Sushant Lok Fhose-L Sector-43,
Ciurgaon-1 22002

&) Exclusive charge on property located at Udaipur.

) First pari-passu charge on lessshold properly right of Kanpur,

) Unrporate Chuarantes of Plus Medicare Hospitals Private Limited.

Kate of interest range [rom 8.458% pa. o 9.19% pa
{31 March 2024 INR 7. 91% pa. to 910 pa.)

b) Working Capital Demand Loan from Bank A:
i} TN 1,333, 74 million (31 March 2024: INR 93317 million) are seeurcd primarily by fized deposils.

Rale uf interest range [rom 8.37% p.ato 9.05% pa
{31 March 2024; TMIE 8.10% pa. to 9.19% pa)

¢) Overdraft from Bank A:

Mil {31 March 2024: 93 .46 million) are secured primarily by

u) First puri-pussu charge by way of cquitable mortgage over lund & building of Gurgaon unit;

b) Firsl paci-passu charge by way of hypothecation over el movable ficed assets, present & future excepl
the ones which are exelusively charped W existing leader(s) for Borrower; (including Kanpur unil)

c} First pari-passu charge by way of hypothecation over all Currenl wssels, present & fiture, of the
Borrower, inlangibles, goodwill, uncalled capital present and olure.

Rate of Interest mil
(31 March 2024: 8.88% pa.)

d} Overdraft fram Banlk B:

TMR 51,82 million (31 March 2024: Nil) are secured primarily by:

a) First puri-pussu charge by way of cquitable montgage over land & building of Gurgaon unit;

b First pari-passu charge by way of hypothevation wver all movable fixed assets, present & fulure excepl
the oncs which are exclusively churged Lo existing lenderiz) for Bomrower; (including Kanpur unit)

c) First pari-passu churge by way of hypothceation over all Currenl assels, present & fumre, of the
Horrower, inlangibles, goodwill, uncalled capital present und luture.

Rate of interest at 9.95% poa to [0060% pa.
(31 Mucch 2024: Hil)

&) Working Capital Demand Loon from Bank B
19 IME 90,00 million (3] March 2024-Mil) are sceured primarily by [xed depaosits.

Rate of interest mné,u from 9.95% p.a
{31 March 2024: Nil)

Subsidinry company: Flus Medicare Hospitals Frivate Limited

E:_x_lur-e af Security

Terms of Repayment

a} Owverdrall from Banlk A

0} IR 23.29 million (31 March 2024: INE 28.50 million) are secured primarily by:

) Exclusive charge on muvable fxed assets including movable plant and machinery, machinery spares,
tonls and accessuries, [ugniture, fieires, vehicles and all other movable assets, present and fumme,

by Exclusive charge on current assets, operaling cesh Oows, receivables, commissions, revenues of
whatsoever nature and wherever arising, present and future

¢ Uorporate Guaranlee of Paras Healtheare Limited {formerly known as Taras Healthezre Private
Limited]).

) Mon Disposahle Undertaking on shareholding of the Company.

Rate of interest range from 8.50% p.a to 9.19%% p.a.
(31 March 2024: £.51% to 8.88% p.a)

Maote: Total undrawn overdraft facility as at 31 March 2023 ainounts to INR 76532 million (31 March 2024: TNR 107120 million).
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Paras Healthcare Limited (formerly known as Paras Healthcare Private Limited)
CIN - TIRSTT0ITR198TPLCOISELS

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Al amounts are in INK million, unless otherwise stated)

18. Oher financial liabilities

Non current Current

Particulars Asat As at As al As atl
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 31 Mareh 2025 31 March 2024
Puvahle for purchase ol property, plant and equipment - - AR3.1R 30470
Emplovees payable - - 5251 G857
Security doposits 5.58 3.25 028 .28
[nterest acerued but not due on borrowings - - 16,04 237
Total 5.54 325 TR2.06 472,92
Mote:
The Group's cxposurs to Hguidity nisks related (o ahove Anancial liabilities are disclosed in note 37.
19, Provizions

Non current Current

Particulars As al Asat As at As at

31 March 2025

31 March 2024

31 March 2025

31 March 2024

Provisien for employee benefits (refer note 39)

Provizion for gratuity 42,06 39.20 10,84 15.32
Provision for compensaled ahsences 3143 33135 19.97 20.84
Total 7349 7135 36,81 Jn.16
20. Trade pavahles

Particul As at Asat

Arfeutsrs 31 March 2024 31 March 2024
Toal outstanding ducs of micro cnterprizes and small enferprises (MSMTE); und 47217 29608
Total outstanding dues of creditors other thun micre enterprises and small enterpriscs 1.433.21 1UTH.73
Total 190538 1,374,581
Notes:

u) The Group's exposure to currcney and liguidity risks refated o trade payables is disclosed in note 37.
by For trade pavables owing to related parties, refer nole 34.
Trade payables apeing schedule as ai 31 March 2025
Ouistanding for following periods from the date of inyoice
Fantliculars Unbilled 1.css than 1 year 1102 years 21to 3 years Mare fian 3 Lon
) L YEars
Undisputed trade payahles
MEWE - 472,17 2 - - 47217
(ihers 738.32 671,26 1514 1.86 6.63 1.433.21
I'otal trade payahles 78,52 1,143.43 15.14 L.46 0,03 190538
T'rade payahles ayeing schedwle as ol 31 March 2024
Outstanding for following periods from the date of invaice
Fhtlicen Unbilled Tess than 1 year 1102 years Tte3years MO 'h:;; l“; rom!
Undisputed trade payahles
hShAR 0.3z 24576 25 - - 296.08
(Mhers 497,18 SR7.07 207 6.596 543 1.078.73
Total trade payahles 497,50 862.83 .07 6,496 5.45 1,374.81
There ave no disputed trade payables, hence the same 15 md disclosed in (he apeing schedule.
21, Other corvent liabilities

Particular As al Asal

ey 31 March 2024 31 March 2024
Stamutory ducs payvable 98.01 4414
Contract linhilities - mdvance [ron petients (refer note 40) 63,83 79491
Total 101,84 174.05

(Thix spece fax been inlentionally it Sank)




Paras Healtheare Limited (formerly lnown as Paras Healtheare Private Limited)

CIN - USSTI0ITR 1987 LCO35523

Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(AN amounts are in INIR nillion, unless otherwise stated)

11,

24,

13

26,

Hevenue from operalions

Particulars

For the year ended
31 Murch 2015

For the vear ended
31 March 2024

Revenue from sale of services - Healtheare

Changes in inventories of stock-in-trade

Operating income - in patient department 10.282.0% 9,225.33

Operating income - nut patient department 217597 1,041,597
Fevenue from sale of product - Pharmaey e 4731.67 418,05
Sub-lotal {A) 12,932.33 11,285.35
Oiher operaling revennes

Sponsorship income 6.09 279

Surap sules .21 - 2.25
Suoh-total (1) H.30 504
Tutal (A+B) 12,940.63 11,290.39

. Oiher income
"SR For the year ended For ihe vear ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Interest income

from hanks 122,040 105.65

from income (ex refund 19.95 3321
(zain on sale of property, plant and eguipment (net) - a7
Dther non operating income

Rental income 368 1.4

Unwinding of discount on financial assels 36,72 3395

Gain on termination of lease - 472

Fareign exchange fluctuation gain (net) 0.74 -

Liabilities no longer required written hack 2.51 G060

Miscellaneous income 15.24 28649
Taotal 207.44 219.84
Turchaszes of stock-in-trade )
Particulars For the year ended For the vear ended

31 March 2025 31 March 2024

“Purchases ol stock-in-trade .l,-iiuﬁi._;}jj 3.048.95
Total 3,301.29 J.048.95

For the vear ended

For the year ended

TatiIta 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
{0 Inventorics af the end of the yeur 20418 21130
(B} Inventarics at the hegimning of the veur 211.30 12947
Met change (B-A) 7.12 (H1.43)
Emplovee benefits expense -
Fictseadar For ihe year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Salarics and wages 1,504,900 [;49?_66
Contribution to provident lund and other funds (refer note 34) LI H] #0.75
Statt welfare expenses 492,68 a1
Total 1,738.06 1,672.5%

Sude: The cost that are ditectly attributahle Lo the aequisition or construction of property, plant and equipment has been capitalised during the year, refer note 33,

{This space has beer tentionaliy feit blak)




Paras Healtheare Limited {formerly known as Paras Healtheare Private Limiled)
CIM - UBSTIDHRRI9RTPLLOCO3SH23

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements tor the year ended 31 March 2025
(Al amounts arve in INIR million, unless otherwise stated)

27. Finance costs

Particalars

For the year ended
31 Mareh 2025

For the vear ended
31 March 2024

Intcrest expense

- Oin borrowings

- On lease liabilitics
Other borrowing costs
Total

54114 355.84
13132 281,70

2T 23.10
ELENE] 67064

Mole: The cost that are directly atributable to the acquisition or constroction of property, plant end eguipment hus been cupitalised during the year, refer note 33,

28. Depreciation and amortization expenses

Particulars

For the vear ended

31 March 2025

For the year ended
31 March 2024

Drepreciation of properly plant and equipment (refer note 4)
Amuortizulion of olher intangible assels (refer note 7A)
[Jepreciation of right-of-use assels (reler note 5)

Total

1,033.91 697.69
14,52 7.05
107,35 101.53
1,155.78 7.7

29, Other expenses

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2025

For the ].lcar ended
31 Murch 2024

Fower, Tuel and water 243,03 196. 10
Rent and facility fees 23440 33180
Repairs and maintenunce

- Ruildings 47.38 iR ]

- Plant and equipments 177.67 157,03

= (thers 98.34 Bin 18
House keeping expenscs 16218 328,12
Laundry cxpenses T3.02 G660
Patient food and beverage 9465 o170
Cuisowrced medical services 456.04 475,86
Securily expense G605 85.09
Corporate social responsibility expensc 15.60 10.90
Legal and prolessional fees 7327 65.75
Travelling and convevance G145 82,95
Printing und stationery 3082 40.09
Communicalion expense 236l 16.76
Imsurance 18.54 1B.31
Hates and luxes 17.62 1185
Advertisement, markeling and outreach expenses 3730 24823
1o allowance 2003 40 10462
Bank charges 2962 23104
Forcign exchange fluctuation boss (ned) - .87
Laoss on sale of property, plunt and equipment (net) 0,34 =
Lab expenscs 3504 2064
Miscellancous cxpenses LA 24904
Total 2.881.52 2.520.42

{This sprce s Dean infendionally fefft dlank
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Paras Healtheare Limited (formerly nown as Paras Mealiheare Private Limited)
CIN 3= UBSLIOHRISETRLON3SR23

Motes to (he Conselidated Financial Statements for te year ended 31 March 2025
(Al amounts are in INR million, unless otherwise stated)

3.

Farnings per share
Basic CPS amounts arc caleulated by dividing the loss for the year atiribulshle 1 equity holders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding
thuring the yeur.
Diluted FPS smounts are calculated by dividing the loss attributable to equity holders by the weighted average number of couity shares oulstanding during the
current year plus the weighled averape number of cquity shares that would be issued on conversion of all the dilulive potential equity sharcs into equity shires,
The following reflects the income and shere dala used in the basic and diluted EPS computations: )

For the vear ended  For the year ended
Particulars

31 March 2025

31 March 2024

Met loss atinbutable (o the equity sharcholders

Mumber of equity sharcs at the begimning of the year (absolute)

Total number of shares vulslanding at the cod of the yesr {absolule) pre split

Tl number of shares outstanding post slock split in the ratio of 1:10 (absolite)

Add: lmpact of bonus shares issued subsequent to year cnd in the ratio of 121 (absolute)
I'odul mumber of shares outstanding post honws tssoe (ghsolute)

Weighted average number of shares used in basic carning per share (ahsulule)
Weighted average number of sharcs cutstanding during the year (absolure)

Dasic carning per share (INR)

Diluted eaming per shire (TNR)

{Thix spave has been intentionally left blank)

(379,83}
7,610,660

97,610,660
(5.94)
(5.94)

(15331
3,675,961
4 880,533

48,805,330

48,805,330

97,610,660

YT.610,660

57,610,660

i1.57)
(1.57)



Paras Healtheare Limited (formerly known as Paras lealtheave Privale Limited)
CIM :- UNSLI0IIRIPRTPLC035823

Motes to (he Consolidaied Financial Stalenients for the yeur ended 31 March 2023
(Al amounts are in TNR millivs, unless otherwise stated)

32, Commitments and contingencies

3IA

g

b)

C

d

Estimaled amount of contracts remaining lo be executed which is of capital nalure {net of advances) and which have ool been provided o in the financial stelements,
amonnts o INRE 245,97 million (31 March 2024: VR 317,70 million) .

The Holding Company hed imported eapital poods under EPCG (Expont Promation Cepila] Goods) Scheme and saved cuslom duty to the fune of INR 253,94 million
{31 March 2024; MR 253.94 million). As per the EPCG lerms and conditions, the Helding Company needs to export goods 6 tmes of duty saved on import of
Capital goods on FOR hasis within & period of & years. The eeposl obligation of INR 125693 million (31 March 2024: INR 348,41 million} is pending to be
exported by the Holding Company. In case, (he Holding Company is unahlc to export services within the preseribed Gmefiame, then the Holding Company muy Tsave
b pay duty on import of eapital goods, including interest and penalty thereon.

Considering the past Lrends and internal assessment done by the Holding Company, the management is of the view that the required export obligation will be
achieved within e preseribed time and hence no provision is required at this stage.

The Group's significant lease arangement i in respect of premises of hospital, nursing hostel and medical cquipments. The details of e commitments of the said
leases is disclosed in Mote 5.

Contingenl lahilitics nol provided for:

1] “T'he Subsidiary Company [Paras Healthcare (Ranch) Privele Limited] had received notice(s) amuunting to INK 2250 million (31 March 2024 INR 27.50 million)

2

fioin Heavy Engineering Corporalion Limited (*HEC™) as liquidated dumages in carlier years on aceount of (he delay in opening of 50 bedded hospilal, in accordance
with the (erms and conditivns of the Agreement dated 16 Januay 2018, The Subsidiary Compuny has replicd to such notices trom HEC and anticipate a fuvorabls
oulcome in future. Dasis the management's asscasment, the Subsidiary Company has not made any provision for (e said amounl, in anticipation of the impact not
Deing significant on financiul performance of the Group,

Guarantees:
Bank guuaniee given to Heavy Engincering Corporation Limited by the Holding Company on hehalf of its Subsidiary Company |Paras Healtheare [Ranchi) Privals
Limited] amounting to TNR 75,00 millivn (31 March 2024: 75,00 million) as per tenms and conditivns mentioned in the concession sgreement entered with TTEC,

4] The Holding Company has provided corporate guarantes to bank on behall ol fhe Suhsidiary Companics for ublaining loans by the Subsidiary Compunies as follows:

4)

Particalurs el l
i . 31 March 2025 31 Murch 2024
Plus Medicare Hospilals Private Limited 32329 12850
Pazas Healthcure (Ranchi) Private Limited 53488 501,38
Tatal £ ; B5K.17 HE0.85

The Subsidiary Company (Plus Medicare Hospilals Private Limited) has issued corporale guarantes amounting to INK 277135 million {31 Macch 2024 IME
1,456.15 million) (as secondary collateral) to Use bank on behalf of the Holding Company for the renewal of Holding Company’s eredit facilities.

5) Claims against the Holding Company not acknowledged as debis

i)

Parficulars Aa at Asaf
) 31 Murch 2025 31 March 2024
1.cgal cwses in respect of compensation demanded by the petienls/iheir relatives for neglipence 18.49 i
{nel of provisions) (refer note i below) : s
Ineome tax (refier note §i below) 469 -
Gonds end Service Tix (refer note iii below) : 2070 -

Motes: !

Represents (he cases that are pending with various Consumer Dispules Redressal Commissions { Courts and the manugement, including its legal advisers, expect thal
its posilion will likely be upheld on ullimale resniution and will not have a malerial adverse elfect on the Group financial positions wd results of operations. n
addition to this, s 4 measure of pood corporate govenance the Group bas taken Professional Indemnily Insuranze Policy for claims pending against the Group to
seoure the Group from any Guancial implication in case of claims settfled againsl the Group.

Nuring Lhe current year, the Holding Company has been served a notice under ssction 143(2) of he Ineome tux 2ot 1961 for the Assessuent Year 20023-2034
Subsequent to the year end, the Holding Company has [led an appeal with CIT (Appeels) wilh adequate responses o the nintice received.

iii} The Subsidiary Company (Tus Medicere ITospitals Private Limiled) was served notice under seclion 73 of GST Act, 2017 for finaneial year 2023-2024 by G8T

iv)

department of Srinagar for sclection of wrong HSN codes. The Subsidiary Company has submitted response under sppropriate groond of appeals egainst the notice
recerved on (imely manner.

‘T'he gbove matters we subject to legal proceedings in the ordinary course of business. The legal proceedings when ultimately concluded will not, in the opinion of
management, have a material elfect on the result of operations or the Gnancial position of the Group. The cash flows in respect of above matters are determinable ondy
_om receipt of judgemenls/decisions pending a1 various stages/Torums,

Diuring the year ended 31 March 2024, the Iolding Company has signed e leller of intent to set-up and mun multi-speciality hospitals in Gurgaon and Ludhiuma, Forther

dur]

ing the year ended 31 March 2025, the Holding Company has signed an agreement to sel-up and nm mulli-speciality hospilels in Gurgaon and Ludhiana.

320 The Holding Company hiad filed draft red herring prospeclus with the Securilies and Fxchenge Board of Indie (SEBT) on 31 July 2024 and had received approval from
BSE and MSE un 09 September 2024 and from SEDL on 18 October 2024,




Paras Healtheare Limited (formerly known as Paras Healtheare Private Limited)
CIN ;- USSTIONRI98TPLOCO3SK23

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
{All amounts are in INRR million, unless otherwise stated)

33. Capitalisation of expenditure incurred during construetion period
‘I'ie costs that are directly attributable (o ihe acquisition of cerlain property, plant and ecquipment are capitalised us under

i As at As at
Raacy 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Opening halance 143.20 I88.34
Incurred during the year:

Emploves benefils expense Gl.46 7263
Other cxpenses 16.28 48.98
Finance costs - 114.21
Total 220.94 524.16
Less: Fxpenses capitalised o property, plant and equigment during the yeur - (380.96)
Carried forward to next financial year as part of capital-work in progress 220.94 143.20

{1 his space has been intentionally left blank)




Paras Healtheare Limited (formerly known as Paras Healthenre Private Limited)
CIN - UBST10TIIR 987 P1.CU35H2S

Motes to the Consolidaled Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2015
(AN amounts are in INR millinn, unless otherwise stated)

34, Related party disclosures

In accordance with Tnd AS-24 oo related party disclosures where control exist and whers ransactions have: taken place and descriplivs of the relationships as identified

und certified by the management arc as follows:

_N.y.lun.' uf relationship

Mame of related party

(1} Koy Munagerial Personnel

(i} Significent influence of key manegerial personnel

(11} Entityf pecson with direet or indirect signiticant influsnce over the

[elding Corpany

Transnpetions during the year ended:

Doy, Dharminder Kumar Magar (Managmg Directon)

e, Kapil Garg { Whole time Dircetor}

Ir, Yeer Singh Mehta (Non-Exceutive Director) (uptn 31 Januery 2024)

Mr. Kabir Kishin Thakur {Dircctor)

M. Suurabh Scod {Additional Directos) (upto 03 June 2024)

BT, Suwrabd Sood (Dircctor) (wee [ 04 Junc 2024)

ir. Makul Anand {Additional Director) (upto 03 June 2024)

Wir. Makul Anand {Director) (w.e.f 04 June 2024)

Wlr. Dilip Ridani (CGroup CFOY

Mo, Rahul Kumar {Company Secrctary)

Mir, Upendra Prasad Singh (Additional Directon) (w.e £ 12 June 2024 upio 19 Junc 224)
Mr. Upendra Prasad Singh (Director) (w.e D 20 June Z024)

hrs. Ushe Bajeey {Additional Director) (w.e.f 12 June 2024 uplo |9 June 2024}
mirs. Ushi Rajeey {Dircetor) (w.e [ 20 June 20243

ir. Bamesh Abhishek (Director) (upto 12 July 2024)

Ch. Wed Ram Nagar Medicel Edecation & Hesearch Society

Commelina Lid. {Invesion)

gl Far the vear ended For the year ended
3 March 2125 31 March 2024
Managerial remuneration
Shorl Lermn emploves bencfits und Other long term benelils
- Dop. Dharminder Kumer Magu 5377 53,71
- D, Kapil (rarg 1195 1096
- Mr, Dilip Bidani FERE 19.03
Mr, Rahul Kumar 4.0 126
2300 H7.02
Posl ernployiment defined beneliis
- Dy Disarminder Kumar Bagar 1.33 1.33
- Do Kapil (arg 0.27 .25
M Dilip Bidasi 0,50 047
Mr Ruhul Bucoae .04 0.08
ENE] ' 113
Retainers and consultants fees
r Veer Singh Melita - 18.26-
- 18.26
Directors sitting fees and remuneration
M. Suurubh Socd 020 033
Mr. Ramesh Abhishek 0.24 0.33
mr. Upendra Prazad Singh 0,95 ]
hdrs, Lisha Hajeey 240 -
e, MNakul Anand ERID -
.94 1.16
Rental income
*h. Ved BEam Nagar Medical Bducation & Rescarch Suciely 0.02 002
.01 0.02

{Thiz space hos been fitentionally gt bink)




Paras Healtheare Limited (formerly known as Paras Healtheare Private Limited)
CIM - UBSTIDHRI9ETPLOD35823

Motes (o (he Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 Muarch 2025
(Al anounts are in INR million, unless otherwise stated)

Balanee oulstanding as al the vear end:

Particolars e bk
31 Muarch 2025 31 March 2024
(Mher receivables
Ch. Wed Bum Magar Medical Edueation & Research Snciety 0,33 031
- T 0.33 K]
Trade payables
D, Weer Singh Mehta - 038
o - .38

T'erms and conditions of reluted parely teansaclions:

i} The Holding Company has given bank guerantee of INE 7500 million (31 March 2024: TNR 7500 million) on behulfof ils subsidiary as per ie leoms and conditions
of the concession agreement enleced with Teavy Engineering Corpaoration Limited.

i) The Holding Company has issued letter of support for tinancial essisiance to Paras Healtheare (Ranchi) Private Limited and Plus Medicare Hospitzls Privete Limiled
[ onguing projects and operations for a perind of not less then 12 muaths Fom e date of financial closure of accounts of the suhsidiary Company for the year ended 31
hlarch 2025

i} The Holding Company has provided a corporate guarantes Lo benk on behall of ils subsidiaries (Mus Medicare Hospitals Private Limiled and Paras [ealthcars
{Ranchi}y Private Limited) for sanction of loan.

iv}) Plus Medicare Iospitals Private Limired has alsn issued o corporale pusranles (as secondary collateral) to the bank on hehalf of the Holding Compuny for B renewal
of Cempany’s credit facilities

MNuoles

a) All transactions with related parties are made on the lerms equivalent to those that prevail in amm’s length mansactions and within the erdinery course of business,
Chtstanding halances at yeer end are unsecured and seilement is generally done i cash,

by The above informalion as been determined tn the extent such parties have been ientified on the basis of information availablz with the Holdmg Company and relied
ugon by the auditars,

. Segment information

The chiel opecating decision maker {COTIM) cxamines the Group's performance [rom 3 servios parspective and has identified the 'Healthears services vy a single business
segment. The Group 15 aperstmg in India which constilules  single geographical segment. The CODM reviews mtermnel manegement cepurls 1o assess the performance off
the segment ‘Heslthoure services’. There are no transactions with a single external customer which would smuunt Lo len percent or more of the Group's revenues.

{This spnace fax Deen itentionally lefl blank




Paras Mealtheare Limited (formerly known as Faras Healtheare Private Limired)
CIN - UBS110ITR196TPLCO35523
Motes to the Consolidated Finaneial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

(Al amounts are in INR million, unless otherwise stated)

36, Fair valoe measurement and fnaopcial instroments
Financial instruments — by category and fair values hierarchy
The following explains the judpements und estimates made in determining the fair values of the finuncial instruments. To provide an indication about the reliability of

the inputs used in determining luir value, the Group has classificd its financial instruments int the three levels prescribed under the acenunting stundard.

Level 1z guolsd prices {unadjusted) in active markets for financial instrumenis.
Level 2: inputs ather than quoted prices included within Level § that are ubservable or the asset or liability, cither dircetly or indirectly.

1.evel 31 unohservable inpuls Gor the asset or liability.

Valnation technigues used to delermine fir valoe

The fair value of the finencial assels and liabilitics arc included ol the amount that would be received to scll an assct and paid o transfer o luhility in an orderdy
transaction hetween market participants. The following methods were wsed (o estimate e i valees |
- Trude receivables, cash and cash equivalents, bank halunces others (han cash and cash equivalents, other financial assels, borrwing, teade payables and other
finunciul linbilities: Approximate their camying amounts lurgely due to the current maturitics of these mstruments.
- Borrowings taken by the group are us per the group’s eredit and liquidity risk assessment and thers is no comparable instrament having the similar terms and
conditions with related security being pledged and henee the carmying value of the bormowings represents the best estimate of fair value.,

As at 31 March 2025

s Carrying value Fair value hierarchy
EaicRtan: EVIPL# | Amortized Cost Total Level 1 level 2 Level 3
Financial assets
Non-current
ther financial assets 32371 32371 - - 32171
Current
Trade receivables 23450 2.3459] - - -
Cash and cash cquivalents T4 37214 - - -
Bank balances ather than cash and cash equivelents 1,683,000 168306 - - -
Oither financial asscts 455,62 455.62 - - -
:I'ntll 5,180.44 5,150.44 - - 323.71
Financial liabilities
Mon-corrent
Borrowings 4,364,411 4,364 41 2 - 4,364,141
lease lubilities 461859 4,618,549 p - 0
{ther finunciel liabilities 5.58 358 - - 558
Currenl
Barrowings 2,914,490 291490 - -
Lease liabilities 423,24 42328 - -
Trade payables 1,905,348 1,905.38 = - -
| Oiher financial liabilitics 732000 75206 - - -
[Total 14,984.20 14.984.20] - - 4,364.99
As at 31 March 2024
Parficalars Carrying value Fair valoe hicrarchy
FVTPL# Amortized Cost Tuolal Level | Level 2 Level 3
Financial azsets
Mun-current
Other financial assets 371351 371.31 - - 37131
Current
Trade receivables 1,563.11 1,563.11 - - =
(Cash and cash equivalenls 154.58 154,58 - - -
Bank halances other than cesh and cash equivalents 144825 LA48.28 b - -
Other financial assels 249 84 24984 - o -
Total 378712 378712 - - 37131
Finanecial liabilitics
Mon-corrent
Borrowings 3,583,949 3,583.09 - - 3,583,099
1 case lubililies 3.503.27 3,503,327 = - -
Cther finunciul liabilities 325 325 - - 3.25
Current
DBarrowings 1891 34 1.B91.34 - -
Lease liabilitics 2ed1.a0) 260,60 - - -
Trade payables 1,374.82 1,374 82 - - -
Oither linancial liabilitics 472592 472.92 - - -
Tatal 10,080.14 11,0019 - - 3,547.24

fi Fair value through profit or loss




Paras Healtheare Limited (formerly nown as Paras Healtheare Private Limited)
CIN :- USS1I0LIRIISTPLCO3SE23

Nales to the Consolidated Finpneial Statenents for the year ended 31 Marvch 2025
(AN amounts are in INK million, unless olherwise stuted)

37. Financial risk management

The Group has exposure to the following risks arising from fnancial insloements:
= Creditrisk ;

= Liguidity risk |

« harkel risk

Risk munagement framewnrk

“The Holding Company's board of directors has overall respuasibifity fur (he establishment and oversight of the Groug's risk menagement framework. The board of
directors heve authorized the Managing Director to estaiblish the processes, who ensures {hat execulive mansgement controls risks through the mechanism of properly
detined frumework.

“The Group's risk management policies are established to identify and analyze the risks fuced by the Group, 1o set uppropriate risks limits and contruls, and to muailor
rizks and adherence to hmils. Risk management policies are revicwed regularly o reflect ehanges in narkes condilions and the Group's activities. The Group, thoough
its training und management standerds and procedures, aims to maintain 2 disciglined and cunstructive conlrel environment in which all employees understand their
rodes and obligations.

| Risk Exposure arising [rom Measnremenl ; Managemuenl

Credil risk Trade  receivables, cash  and  cash|Agemg analysis Thversification of bank deposits and
cquivalents, bank balances other Lthun cash eredit limits and regular monitoring and
and cash equivelents and other financial follow ups
nssets

Liguidity misk Rorrowings, rade puyables, lease liabilities| Cash Qow torecasts Avuilability of committed eredit lines and
and uther financial liabilitics borrowing facililies,

Markeot sk [orcign exchange | Future commerciul leansactions, recognized| Casl Bow forecusling sensilivily analysis Forward foreign exchange conlracis
fingncial — sssels and  lwbilites ool
denominated in Indian Tupee.

Market risk — inlercat Tabe 1 ang-term borrowings al variable rales Sensilivily analysis Diversification of burrowings.

(A) Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk of [nancial loss Lo the Group ifa customer o coumnterperly 1c A financial asset fails W mest its contracival ahligations, The CGroup’s exposure o
credil tisk iz influsneed mamly by the individual characteristics of cach fnancial assel. The carrying amounts of financial assets represents the mudnum credil risk

expose

A default on & Gnancial asset i when the counterparty fails 1o make contractual paymenls 83 per agreed terms. This definition of default is determined by considering
the Tusiness snvironment in which entity operates and other macry-gconmmic faclurs,

The Ciroup has a credil risk management policy in place to limit credit Josses due to non-performance of connterparties. The Group musitors its expusure to credil risk
on un angning busis. Assels sre written off when there is 10 reasonable expectation ol recovery. Where Inans and receivahles ure written off, (e Group conlinees t
enpage in enforeement aclivily to attempl Lo recover Lhe dues,

Trode veceivablis

The Uiroup closely monilucs the eredil-worthiness of the receivehles through inleral systems that are configured 1o define credit Timits of customers, thereby, limiting
the credil risk to pre-caleulated amounts. The Group uses a simplified approwch (lifetime expected credil loss madel) Tor e purpess of compatation of expootod credit
lovss [ frade receivables. Expected crodit lusses are measured on collective basis for each of the following categuries |

|_[.‘at|_-gury Tnputs for mensurement ol expected credit Insses Assumiptions

Covernment Callection against culstanding receivables in past years Trend of collections made by the group over a period of three years
preceding balance sheel date and considering default 1o have
necurred if recivables are not collecled for less than (hree years.

Mon-government N
Corporales Coollection against vulstanding receivables in pust years Trend of collections made by the treup over a period of three years

preceding balance sheet date pnd considering default to huve

oseurred if receivables are nol collected tor less than throe years

Third party sdministeators of | Collection against outstanding receivables in past years Trade receivahles outstanding for more than lheee yours ore
INSUCANGS COHILPANIES considered imecoverable Allowance for cxpecled credit loss on
receivahles autstanding for less than three yews iz recognised based
an cxpected deductions by third party administrators.

Others Cuslomer wise (rade receivables and infusmation oblained) 5| ceific allowance is made by assessi r wise outstandin
I i party
throngh sules recovery follow wps receivables based on communicalion hebween sales team and
CUsoImers.,

¢ ard cash eguivafents and bank balances offer tha ok and cash equivalents
Crredit risk reluled to cash wnd cash equivalents and bank deposits 1s managed by only investing in deposits with kighly rated banks and diversilying bank depusits and
weeonmts in different bunks, Credit risk is considersd low beeause b Grroup deals with highly rated hanks.

{This space has been Intentionally left hlanic)




Taras Healtheare Limited (formerly knvwn a5 Paras Healtheare Private Limited)
CIN - USS 1 HIHE 1S TPLO03S823
Mates to the Conselidated Finnncial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

(Al amounts are in INR million, unless atherwise stated)

i)

(Mher financial assels

Oither financial assets measured at amortized cost includes securily deposits, contract assets, accrued interest on [eed deposits and other receivables. Credil risk
related (o (hese financial assets is managed by menitoring the recoverahility of such amounts conlinuously, while at the same time internal control system are in place
1o ensure the amounts are within defned limits, Credit risk is considered low because the Geoup is in possession of the underlying assel (in case of seeurity deposit) or
&5 per trede experience (in case of unhilled revenue from patient). Further, the Group ercates provision by wssessing individual [naneial asset for expectation of any

credil luss basis 12 month cxpected credil loss model.

Credit rish exposure

Expected credit loss for trade receivables under simpliticd approgch Le. provision maliis approach using historical trends.

As at 31 Murch 2025

Mon-government
y : = Third party ]
P ! Liove
Srficulan: remmen) Cnrporates administrulors off Others Tuotal
) InSUrnnce Companies
Giross carrying value 2,179.93 252 67 35522 50.27 283809
Less: Expected credit loss (impairment) (360.64) (18.23) (45.15) (48,127 (492 18)
Currying amount (net of impairment} 1,819.25 214.44 10.07 .15 234501
As at 31 March 2024
| NUII'E{I}'E"“MEHT
. i Third party
Par : v =i
arficulars “vepaesak Corporates adminisiraturs uf| (thers Tuial
[ - insurnpee companies
Ciross carrying value 1,281.21 21988 29580 44.43 1,851.32
Less: Gxpecled credit loss (impairment) (17100 [H0.45) {42.94) [33.82) {288.21)
Carrying amount (vet of impairment) 1,1201.21 179,43 152180 161 1,563.11

Expected credil lusses Lor other finanzial asseds (mewsorsd al en amount equal to 12 months expeeted credil losses).

As at 31 Mareh 2023

Particulars

Estimated gross
carrying pmount at default

Expected credit
lusses

Carrying amonnt net of impairment
provision

Cash amd cash equivalents

Dactk balances other than cash and cash syuivalents

Cither financial asscts

372,14
1,643 03
779.33

37214
1,683,006
779.33

Asat 31 March 2024

Particulars

Cash amd cash equivalents

Llank batances ather than cash and cush equivalents

Chler tinancial assets

Estimated gross

i\l&pl:utr:d credit
lusses

careying amount at defaule

154 58
[T
62115

Clarrying amount net of impairment
provisivn

154 58
Lis 28
62115

(This spece hay been itenfionaliy feft blank)




Paras Healtheare Limited (formerly known as Parus Iealtheare Private Limited)

CIN - UBST IR SETPLCU35R2E

Motes to the Conselidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

(Al ameunts are in TN million, unless otherwise stated)

iii) Reeonciliation of expected eredit loss for financial assets

Trade veceivahles

Reconciliation of loss allovwance

Luss allowmnee as at 1 April 2023 183,55
Add: Allowance for expected credil loss for the year 10462
Liss allowance as at 31 March 2024 28821
Add: Allowanee for expeeted credil loss for the year 20397
Loss allowance as at 31 March 2025 U218
Expected credit lass for trade receivable as ar 31 March 2023
Particular s tha o otk 1102 yvears 21w 3 years Blgee thak Tatal
& months to 1 year i 3 yeuars
Gross carrying amound (u) - 1,304,200 34540 28328 243 05 157.25 2H3K.00
Expreted credil loss rate (%) 11.5%% 10555 E1RRH B1.46% 100002 17.34%
_I‘.'I[:H:l:tl.'d credil losses (B) 168 37.582 H7.71 198,72 157.25 492 14
MNet trade receivables (n-h) 1,797.52 307.58 195,57 45,24 - 2,345.01
Eapected eredit Inss for trade receivalile as at 31 March 2024
Particular It e It 2 years 2 1o 3 years DAyEE S Total
6 months to 1 year 3 years
Gross carrying amaunt (n) 9417 18171 271.16 111.33 8095 1,451.32
Lxpected credil loss rate (o) 1.48% 0.59% 20.61% T2 % 100.005%, 15.57%
Lxpecled credit losses (b} 14.71 34 87 55.89 101,74 8095 IRE2L
Net trade receivables (a-h) YTH4E 328.84 215.27 39.54 = 1,563.11

(This spece his bean intentionally feft Bloank)
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(B) Liguidity risk

they are due.

Meaturitics of fnancial labilities

Paras Healtheare Limited (formerly known as Faras Healtheare Private Limited)

Muotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

Liguidity risk is the risk that the Ciroup will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations mssociated with ils Mnancial liabilitics that arc settled by delivering cash
or another financial asset, The Group's approach (v managing liquidity is to ensure as far as possible, that il will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabililies when

anugement monitoes rolling forecasts of the Group's liguidity position and cash and cash equivalents on the hasis of expected cash flows. The Group takes inlo
account the liguidity of the market in which the Group operales.

The follpwing ure Lhe remaining contractual maturitics of fnuncial liabilities at the reporting date. The amounts are gross and undiscounted, and include cstimated

intergst payments, where applicable.

31 March 2025 Upta 1 vear 1 year fo 5 years Over 5 vears Tulal
Dorrowings* 33392 380997 180157 5.0936.44
Trade puyahles 190538 - - 1,905.38
Lease liahilities 445 80 1,937,949 15,216.41 17,600.20
Other financial liahilities 75206 - 5,58 75764
Taolal 6,428.16 5.747.94 17.023.56 29,190,468
31 March 2024 Lipto 1 year 1 vear o § years Owver 5 years Total
DBoarrowings®* 232525 202047 1,850,359 700531
Trade payables 1,374,842 - - 1,574.82
Lease liabilities 28275 1,263.81 13,595.77 15,142,133
Cther financial liabilities 472.92 = 325 476.17
: Tuoial 4,355,74 4,193.28 15.449.61 23,998.63
* Includes current maturities of non current borrowings
The Group also has access to the following undrawn horrowing from banks at the end of the reporting year. -
Particulars il Ayl
3 Mareh 2025 31 March 2024
Term loans from hanks 1,500, 19 6099
Working capital loan 745,32 1.071.20
1,265.51 1,762.19

(This spoce hos been fentionally left dlank)




Paras Healiheare Limited (formerly known as Paras Healtheare Private Limited)
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Motes fo the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(ANl amounts are in INIR million, unless otherwise stated)

{C) Marlket risk

Market risk is the risk thal chunges in market prices - such as foreign exchunpe rates and interest rates — will affeet the Group’s income or Lhe value of its
holdings of financial instruments. The objective of market risk manapgement is to manage and control market risk cxposures within acceptable parameters,
while opiimixing the return.

a) Foreign exchange risk

The Group has international transactions and is cxposel (o foreign exchange risk arising from foreign cumeney transactions (imports). Foreign exchange
risk arises lrom future commercial transactions and recognised assets and liabilities denominated in a currency thal is nol the Group's functional currency,
The Ciroup has not hedged its forcign cxchange puyubles lor the year ended 31 March 20235,

Foreign corrency risk exposure:

Puriicuiiea As al 31 March 2025 A at 31 March 2024
Foreign curreney INI Foreign enrrency INK

Liabilities
Payable lor purchase of property, plant and equipment LISTY 115.53 TS 253.67
‘Lotal 115.53 253.47
Sensitivity
I'he sensitivity of profit or luss lo chanpes in the exchange rates arises from loreipn currency denominated financial instruments.

As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
Particulars Currency Exchange rate Exchange raie Exchange rate Exchange rate

increase hy 1% decrease hy 1% inerease by 1% decrease by 1%

Liahilities
Payable tor purchase of property, 15D (116} 1.16 (2.54) 254
plant and equipment

b Interest rate risk

Trilerest rate visk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will Auetuaie because of changes in market interest rates. The
Ciroup’s interest rate risk arises from:-

- Doreowings which are made at market raie of inlerest at the time of borrowings,

- Dank deposits which are made at markel rale of interest at the time of deposit,

Tapesare f Imeost Ra KRk 31 I'r'l.'lrc];i;ﬂ;; 3 I"rlaruh";z;cll
Fixed rate instruments

Financial asscts 1699093 146326
Financial liabilitics - NI
Varighle rate instruments

Financial liabilitics 7,279.31 546927

Cash flow sensitivily analysis for variable-rate instroments
A reasanably possible change of 50 basis puinls in interest rates at the reporting date would have increased! (decreased) profit or (loss) by the amounls
shown helow. This analysis assumes [hai all ather variables remain constant,

Impact on Profit or {Toss) net of tax

Effeetl in INIX million

S0 bp increase 50 bp decrease
31 Murch 2025
Variahle rate instruments (27.20) 27.24
Cash flow sensilivity (net) (27.24) 27,244
31 March 2024
Variahle rale instruments (20.40) 2046
Cash flow seositivity (net) (20.46) 2046

{This space has been intentionally Tefi blank)




Paras ealtheare Limited (formerly known as Paras Healtheare Private Limited)
CTM - TIRSII0HR198TPLCO35823
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
{All amounts are in INR million, unless ntherwise stated)
3%. Capital management
For the purposc of the Group’s eapilal management, capital includes issued equily capital, sccurities premium and all other reserves attribulabls Lo the
eyuily holder. The primary objective of the Group's capital management is fo maximize the sharchalder value.

Management assesses the Group’s capital reguirements in order lo maintain an cfficient overall financing structure while svoiding excessive leverage, This
takes inlo account the Growp’s varions classes of debt.

The amounts manaped as capital hy the Group for the year ended 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024 are as uvnder:

Particulars Asns pdal

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Tatal equity 2,804.92 3,385.08
(lash and cash cquivalents [372.14) (154.58)
Capital 2,431.78 3,230L.50
Total equity 2.804.92 33R5.08
Borrowings 7,279.31 547533
Leasc liabililies 5,041.88 3,763.87
Overall financing 15,1260.11 12,624.28
Capital to overall financing ratio ) .16 0.26

‘I'he Group manages its capilal structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions. No changes were made in the objeetives,
policies or processes for managing capital during (he years ended 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024,

{This space has been intentionally left bank)
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Motes Lo the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 Mareh 2025
{All wmounis are in INIE million, unless ntherwise stated)

39,

a)

b

e}

Employee benefits

The Group contributes to the thllowing post-smployment defined benefit plans,

Defined contribution plans
The {iroup has recognised the following amoumt in the Consolideted Stulement of Profit and Loss:

For the year ended

For the }'r:a:i' eoded

Farioslats 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Emplover's contribution to Employee's Provident Fund 7125 TG
Emplayers contribulion o Emplayee's State Insurance 729 7.52
Other funds (MPS wnd lTabour weltare fund) 1.94 1.17

_ 80.45 80,75

Other long-term employment henefits
The Group provides compensated shsences henefils W the employees ot the Group which can be carried Gerward Lo future years.

For the vear ended

Particulars 31 Mawch 2025

For the year ended
31 March 2024

Present value of shligation as at ke end of the year

Compensuted ahsiences 3140 53.90

Current and non-corrent liability bilurcation

Man comment 3143 3315

Current 19.97 20084
S1.40 53.99

Drefiwed bewefit plans

The Group provides for gratuity for employees in India as per the Payment of Gratuily Act, 1972, Employees wha are in continunus service [ur a period of 3 years
are eligible for gramuity. The amount of gratuily payable on retirementierminulion is e employees 1ast drawn basic salary per month computed proportionately for

fitteen days salary multiplied for Die number of years of service.

(i) Reconciliation of present value of defined benefil obligation

For the yvear ended

articulars
Farticulars 31 March 2025

For the vear ended
31 March 2024

“Prescent value obligation s at the heginning ot the vear 54.52 45.33
Henelits puid (11.035) (9.78)
[wrrent service cost 11.22 10.79
Interest expensg 3.53 325
Actuarial Insses recognised o other comprehensive income (.38 4.91
Present value abligation as ai the end of the year 58.90 54.52
i) Met linhility recognised in the consolidated balanee sheel i
z Az at As ol
Rt 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Mon current 42.06 3020
Current e 16.84 1532
casprany 5890 54.52

(i) Amount recopnized in consolidated stalement of profit and loss N o
Particulars For the year ended  For the year ended
o 31 March 2023 31 March 2024
Current servive cosl 11.25 10.79
Interesl sxpense 383 325
15.08 14.04

{iv) Bemensurements recognized in other comprelensive income ((CT)

For the year ended

Particulars 31 March 2025

For the vear ended

31 March 2024

Actuurial loss on defined bencfit ohligation (138

' 4.9]

.35

4.91
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Motes to the Conselidated Financinl Statements for the year ended 31 Marvch 2025
(AN amownts aee in INI million, unless otherwizse stated)

(v) Actuarial assumptions

Asat Asal

Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Finnncial assumplions

Discounl rate TO0 1.25%
Salary escalation rale 5000 5.001%
Mortality rale [ALM 2312-14 [ALM 2002-14
Retirerment apge 58 yeurs 58 years
Wilhdrawal rule 350050 35.0M0%%

Mg ar 31 March 2025, tle weighted average duration of the defined boenefit obligation is 22 vears (31 March 2024: 21 vears).

These assumplions were developed by management with the assistance ol independent acluanial appraisers. Discount Geolors are determined close W each year end
by relerence W geovernmenl bonds of relevanl economic markels and that bave leons o mulusily approximating W the lenms of (e relaled obligation. Other
assumnplions are based on management’s histovical experience,

(i) Sensilivily analysis

The below sensilivity analyses are based on a change in an assumption while holding all cilier assumplions constant. In praclice, tas is unlikely 10 occur, and
changes in some of the assumptions may be comelated, When caleulating the sensitivity of the defired benefil obligation to significant actuacial assumplicnes the
same metheds {present value of defined benetit ebligation caleulated with the projected unit eredit methad at the end of the reporting peried) has been applied as
when ealenlating the defined henefit liability recognised in the balance sheet,

The methads and rypes of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not change compared to the prior period,

5 ) As al 3 Muarch 2025 As at 31 March 2024
Particolars -
Ineresse Deerease Inerease Deerease
Dhiscounl rule (1%]) 5567 5582 5115 3373
Sulary escalulion rale (%) SB4R 5832 53.75 sl
Withdruwal rate | 1%) 36.61 56.79 5200 5277

The sensitivity resulls above determine their individual impact on the Mlan's end of vear Defined Benelil Obligation. In reality, the Plan is subject o mullipls exlernal
experience items which may move the Defined Benefit Obligation in similar or opposite directions, while the Plan's sensitivity (o such changes can vacy over Lime,

(vii} Expected future cash flovs
The tahle helow shows the expected discounted cash flow profile of the benefits to be paid fo the current membership of the plan hased on past service of the
employess a5 af the valuation date:

Particulars sl Asal
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Year | 16,84 1528
Year 2 4.88 4.50
Year 3 521 4.7
Year 4 534 4.21
Year 5 379 4.17
Year 6 vnwards 2284 21.59
58,90 54.5:4":

The Group expects to contribute MR 20,45 million (31 March 2024 INE 21.90 million} for post employment benctits during the next finanecial vear,

(This space fs been fifentfonally fafi ank)
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4. Revenue related disclosures

1 Disapgregation of revenue

Revenue recognized mainly comprises of hewlthcare services. Sctout below is e disagaregation of the Group's revenue from contracts with costomers:

Deseription

For the year ended
31 March 2025

For the year ended
31 March 2024

Kevenue from sale of services - Healthoare
{perating incoame - in patient department
Ciperating income - oul patient deparmment

Revenue from sule of product - Pharmacy
Sub-total (A)
Other operaling revenue
Sponsorship income
Scrap sules
Sub-total (K)

Total (A+H)

1T Timing of vevenus recognition
The fllowing table provides information about timing of revenue recognition:

10,282.69 922533
217597 1,641.97
ATI6T 41805
12,931.33 11,285.35
604 279

221 2325

8.30 504
12,040,63 11,290.39

Descriplion

For the vear ended
31 March 2025

For the year ended
31 March 2024

AL point in time 2,657.94 206500

AL poinl uver lime 10,282,064 9,225,133

T'ntal revenue 12,940.63 11,290.39

II1 Contract halances

The fallowing table provides information shout trade receivables, contruct ussels and contract liabilities,

Particulars il arat
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Contract assets - unbilled revenue {refor nofe &) 116.03 140g. 10

Contrace liahilities - pdvance from paticnts (refer nole 21) 63.83 7991

Trade reccivables (refer note 12) 234591 1,563.11

Contract asset is the right o consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred b the customer. Contrace lability is the entity's obligation to wransfer goods or
services m a customer for which the enfify hus received consideration from the customer in advance, Contract ussets (unbilled receivables) are fransferred Lo

receivables when the rights become unconditional und contract liabilitics are recopnised as and when the performance oblipation is satistied,

IV Significant changes in (he contract halances during (he year are as follows:

. i : s Asat Asal
Contract liabilities - ndvance from paticnis 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Opening halance of contract liabilities - advanee from patients 79.91 65.67
Movement during (e year (net) (16.08) 14.24
Closing balance of contract liabilities - advance from patienls 63.83 7091

: Asat Ay at
Contract assets - Unbilled revenne 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Openiog balanee of contract assels - unbilled revenue L0 10 TH.94
Less: Ammount of tevenue recognised during the year (109 10y (7854
Adld: Addition during the yeur 11603 109.10
ﬁuing balance of contract asscts - unbilled revenne 11603 109,10

Y The aseregate amount of ransaction price allocated to the performance obligations (yet to complele) us al 31 March 2023 is INR 0383 million (31 March 2024; TNR
79.51 million). This halunce represents the advance received from patients {gross) against healthcare services, The management expeels W further bill and eollect the
remaining balance of wtal consideration in the coming years. These balanees will he recognised as revenue in subsequent year as per the policy of the Group,
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Paras Healiheare Limited (formerly known as Paras Healtheare Private Limited)
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Modes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Al amounts are in INIE million, unless oitherwise stated)

42 Business Combination

Summary of acquisition

Thuring the year ended 31 March 2025, the Group has enlered inlo business ransfer agreement to acquire all assets and lisbilities of Clearmedi Healtheare
Private Limited deploved at the Group on # slump sale hasis. The purchase consideration amounted to INE 31900 million and INR 30.00 million for the I'aras
Healtheare Limited (formerly known as Paras [Healtheare Private Limited) (the "Holding Company") and Paras [lealthcare (Ranchi) Private Limited (The
"Subsidiary Company™) respectively and to be discharged in cash.

a) Business combination
The ahave transaction qualificd as & business combination as per NI AS 103- "Business Combination” and has been sccounted by applying the acquisition
method wherein identifiable assels scquired, lighilities assumed at fair value against the fair value of the consideration trans rred.

b) Measurement of fair values

Particulars Fair Value
Consideration paid 365,00
Purchase Consideration {A) 369,00

The assets and liabilities recognised as a resull of acquisition are as follows:

Property, plant and equipment 37474
Trade payables )]
Tdentifialle net assets acquired (B) Jol.0u
Gondwill! (Capital Reserve) (A-H) -

) Revenue and profit contribution
The acquisition is not anticipaled W signilicantly impact the Company's operational revenue or profil contribulions.

d) Acquisition related costs of TNR 0,45 million are included in other expenses in Statement of Profil and Toss and in operating cash flows in Statement of
Cash Flows

{Thix space has been intentfonally left Blank)
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Moies to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 20235
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43.
a)

b)

c}

d)

€]

el

k)

il

Oither statutory information

The Group does not have sny henami property and no proceedings have been inilisled or pending against the Group for holding any benami property, under (e
Benami Transactions (Frohibitions) Act, 1988 (45 of 1948) and the rules made thereunder.

The Group has not advanced or provided loan to or invested funds in uny entilies including foreign entitics {Intermediaries) or o any other persons, with Lhe
understanding that the intermediary shall:

(i} dircetly or indirectly lend or mvest in other persons or entilies identificd in any manner whatsoever by or an hehall of the group (Ulimale Dene(iciarics) or

{ii) provide any guaranlee, security or the like tw or on behalf of the ullimate beneficiarics

“Ihe Ciroup has not received any fund from any persons or entitics, ineluding foreign entities {Funding Parly) with the understanding (whether recorded in wriling
ar otherwise) that the Group shall:

{i) directly or indircetly lend or invest in other persons or entitics fdentified in any manner whatsoever by or on behall of the Funding Party {Llimale
Beneficiaries) o

(if) prowide any guarantes, security or the like on hehul £ of the ultimate beneliciaries,

The Group has not undertaken any ransaction which is nol recorded in the borks of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in
the tax assessments under the Income Tax Acl, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Invame Tax Act, 1961).

The Group has not traded or invesled in crypto currency or virtual curreney during the current and previous financial year.

The Group has not been declared a "Willful Defaulter’ by any hank or financial institotion {zs delined nnder the Companies Act, 2013} or consorlium thereot, in
aceordance with the guidelines on willful defauiter issued by the Reserve Bank of India.

The Group has complied with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of seetion 2 of the Act read with Companies (Restriction on number of layers)
Fules, 20107

The Group does nol have any transsctions with companies struck off under Section 248 of (he Companics Acl, 2003 or section 560 of Companies Act, 1956
churing the (nancial yoar,

The Group has adopled cost model for ils property, plant snd equipment {including right-nl-use asseis) or intangihle assets or both during the currenl or previous
YEHTS,

The Group has wot eatered into any scheme of arrangement which has an gecounling impact on current or previous financial years,

Events ocenrring alter the reporting period

Pre- 1P Placement

i. Subsequent W year cod, purswant ko Lhe resolutions passed vide its board meeting duted 04 April 2025 wnd 11 Apeil 2025 and extraordinary general mecting
duted 05 April 2025 and 12 Apeil 2025, the Holding Company has issued agaregate of 3,375,527 equity shares by way of preforcatial allotment on private
placement hasis having face value of TNR. 1~ cach, af u premium of Bs 236/- per share, apgregating to TNR 30000 millions, pursusnt o the provisions of Seclivn
42, Section 62(1)(c) and other applicable provisions, it any, of the Companics Act 2013, read with the Rule 14 of the Companics (Prospeclus and Allotment of
Securities) Rules, 2014, Rule 13 of the Companies (Share Capital and Dehentures) Rules. 2014, and in accordance with the applicable provisions of the Foreign
Exchange Manapement Act, 199905 applicable, as amended from time fo time, and in accordance with the Memorandum of Association and Articles ol
Association of the Holding Company.

i, Suhsequent to year end, pursuant to e share purchise agreement dated 07 April 2025 and 11 April 2025, Commcling |imited (Tnvestor) has transferred certain
Cquity Shares held by it in the Holding Company to certain entities on 08 April 2023 and 16 April 2025 agerepating to 7487005 equity shares, at TNR 237/- per
shure.

(Thix space has been injentionally Tefi blank)
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45, The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) has prescribed 2 requirement for companies under the proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014
inserted by the Companies {Accounts) Amendment Rules 2021 requiring companics which nses accounting soflware for maintaining its books of account, shall
use ontly such accounting software which has a feature of recording audil trail of each and every transaction, greating an edil log ol ezch change made in the books
of aecount along with the date when such changes were made and ensuring that the sudit trail cannol be disabled. The Holding Company and its two subsidiaries
have used accounting soflware and operation software (collectively referred to as *Software’) related to maintenance of books of account. Onee the financial
enlries ure posted in the Software, no changes are allowed to already posted ranseclivns. Also, in case of cancellation/reversal of already posted entries, separate
entrics are crested in the application. Additionally, the detailed log of events for master data changes are enabled at application level.

‘The andit trail featere was conabled at the dutuhase level from 13 May 2024 for one accounting sollware used for maintenance of revenne and inventory records by
the Halding Compamy and its two subsidiarics. However, the audil trail feature was not cnabled at the datuhase level for another accounting softwares, used by the
Hulding Company for maintenance of lahuratory records, to log any direct data changes,

The Tlolding Company and ils two subsidiaries have used accounting soflware [or maintenance of books of accounts which is eperated by a third-party software
service provider. Tn the abscnee of any information on existence of audit trail (edit logs) for any direct changes made at the database level in the Tndependent
Serviee Anditor's Assurance Report on the Deseription of Contrels, their Design and Operating Effectiveness” (*Type 2 report’ issucd in accordance with [SAE
3402, Assurance Reports on Controls al u Service Organization), the Group is unshle o demonstrate whether andit frail feature with respect to the database of the
said software was enabled and operated throughout the year.

The Haolding Company and its two subsidiaries have used accounting software for mainlenance of payroll records which is operated by a third-purly sollware
service provider, In the ahsence of auy information on existence of audit trail (edit logs) for any direct chanpes made at the database level in the *Independent
Service Auditor’s Assurance Keporl on Lhe Description of Controls, their Design and Operaling Effectiveness’ (“1ype 2 reporl’ issued in accordance with ISAE
3000 {Revised), Assurance Cogagements Other than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information), we are unable to demonstrate whether andit truil
[ealure with respect to the databuse of the said software was enabled wnd uperated throughout the year.

“Ihe Group have advised the Enterprise Resource Planning (ERI) service provider to include the database of audit trail functionality in the nexl yeur™s Type 2
report.

“The nutes Lo the financial statement including material accounting policy information and other explanatory information are an integral parl of thess consolidated
financial statemenls.
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